BizInsight 7

Summary

BizInsight 7 provides pre-loaded plug and play modules and connectors. Each Connector module is constructed with precision to enhance your ERP System. Once the data is retrieved into Excel, BizInsight users can use all Excel capabilities with the power of BizInsight to create reports that meet the needs of business reporting: financial statements, budgets reports, sales analysis, invoice analysis and dashboards.

BizInsight 7 can be purchased with and without a Connector. When sold without a Connector, BizInsight 7 uses the same User Interface tools, but without connectivity to an ERP System. BizInsight 7 without a Connector can also be used with PackNGo output or with any data that can be retrieved into Excel.

This Guide will introduce the new elements that you will see in Excel after installing BizInsight 7 and will provide information on how to use these products to build the reports you need.

Table of Contents

BizInsight User Interface Additions	5
Exploring the BizInsight Ribbon	6
Getting Started	10
Navigation Pane	11
BizInsight 7 Navigation Pane Header	14
Refresh	14
Search	15
Save	16
Settings	16
Customize Startup Page Menu	17
Connect to Data	18
Preferences	18
Navigation Pane Body	22
Favorites	22
My Queries	23
Connector Menu(s)	25
BizInsight 7 Navigation Pane without a Connector	27
Workbook Queries	27
Right-Click Menu	28
Any Cell	28
Function Right-Click Menu	
Table Right-Click Menu	32
BizInsight Table Options	32
Pivot Table Right-Click Menu	35
BizInsight Functions	36
Editing an Existing Function	41
Using Operators	41
BizInsight Tables	43
Editing an Existing Table	49
Expressions	50
Creating Expressions	52
Expression Fundamentals	56
Logical Operators	56

Operator Precedence	57
Constructing Expressions	57
Expression Examples	59
Saving Expressions	64
Data Cache Management	66
Smart Data Cache Management	68
Right-click Menu Options	71
Refreshing Reports	72
Cell Referencing	72
Anchoring	73
Adjusting the Sign of Data	76
BizInsight Properties	77
Property Elements	78
Creating Properties	79
Retrieving Properties	81
Property Known Issues	83
Wildcard Characters	84
Lists and Ranges	85
Lists	85
Ranges	87
Drilldown	88
Dynamic Tables	91
Removing Extra Columns	93
Design Mode	95
PackNGo	96
PackNGo and BizBroadcast	103
Distributing Reports to non-BizInsight Users	104
Analyzing Other Data	105
1. Get Data	105
2. Select Data	105
3. Use BizInsight Query	110
Combining Biznet Data with External Data	121
Saving Data to the Navigation Pane in BizInsight 7 without a Connector	127
Useful BizInsight and Excel™ Capabilities	129
Suppressing Zero Rows	130

Protecting Worksheets	
Dynamic Report Titles	
Appendix	
BizInsight Query Settings Button	
Table Parameters	
Get External Data	
Adjusting Data Cache Management	
Refresh Interval	
Changing User Credentials	

BizInsight User Interface Additions

After BizInsight is installed, you'll notice the addition of a BizInsight 7 tab to the Excel ribbon and a Navigation Pane.

File BizInsight7	Insert	Page Lay	out	Formulas	Data	Review	Home	View	Developer	Add-ins	Help
Load BizNet Se BizInsight7 Assistant	elect Query Data Data	Refrest Workboo	n Calc oks Form	ulate Desi nulas Mo	ign View de Data BizInsight	Check P for Errors	ackNGo Ac	tivate	Jpdates About Co	nfiguration	
W33 🔻 :	× ✓	f_{x}									
		<	1	A	В	С	D	BizIns	ight Ribb	on	Н
	Q 🖪	ŝ	2 3								
Favorites		€	5 6								
My Queries		\odot	7		E	Bizlnsigh	t				
BizNet Sample	Data		10		Nav	igation P	ane				
BizProperties		Ð	11 12 13								
			14								

Exploring the BizInsight Ribbon

When BizInsight is installed, a new tab is added to the Excel ribbon. The buttons available on the ribbon vary depending on whether a Connector is also installed.

FILE	HOME	INSERT	PΔ	GE LAYOUT	FORM	IULAS	DAT	a Rev	/IEW	VIEW Bi	zBroadcast	BizInsight7	BizInsight
Load BizInsight7	BizNet Assistant	Select Data	fx ^{Query} Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	Design Mode BizInsigl	View Data	Check for Errors	Activate	€ Updates Ⅲ About			

BizInsight without a connector



BizInsight with a connector

Button	Description
Load BizInsight	Launches the BizInsight Navigation Pane (when a Connector is installed) and enables the buttons on the BizInsight 7 ribbon.
BizNet Assistant	Allows immediate access to online documentation, training and how-to videos, the Support web submission form, a link to a product feedback form, and a link to BizNet's blog.
Select Data	Select Data is used to store data in Excel's memory ("Excel Data"). It is not generally used for data that has been retrieved from an ERP. That data ("Service Data") is already cached.
fx Query Data	Allows the user to create a Functions, Tables, Data Validation lists or Expressions using Excel Data or Service Data.

Button	Description
Refresh Workbooks	This button recalculates all objects, Functions and Tables, in all open workbooks. When clicked, the following events will occur:
	 All Functions are recalculated. All BizInsight Tables (also called "Lists") are refreshed. All items stored as Excel Data are re-committed. All BizInsight Tables are refreshed again. All Functions are recalculated again.
	All of the above will occur on all open workbook(s). The latest data will be extracted from the ERP system if the data is older than the refresh interval. See <u>Data Cache Management</u> for more information about data caching and how it works.
Calculate Formulas	Calculates all Excel and BizInsight Functions found in all open workbook(s).
	All of the above will occur on all open workbook(s). The latest data will be extracted from the ERP system if the data is older than the refresh interval. See <u>Data Cache Management</u> for more information about data caching and how it works.
Design Mode	Working in Design Mode refers to working without a connection to the caching service. When in Design Mode, all functions will display #DESIGN. See the <u>Design Mode</u> section for more information.
View Data	The View Data dialog displays information about the current Excel and Service data caches. See the <u>Data Cache Management</u> section for more details.
Check for Errors	Reviews workbooks and locates any Excel recognized error(s).
PackNGo	Allows users to send BizInsight workbooks to other Excel users who do not have connectivity to the ERP system. See <u>PackNGo</u> for more information.
	This button is only displayed when a Connector is installed.
Activate	Allows users to activate their new license key or deactivate an existing license key.
	To complete a license deactivation, you must deactivate the license key, then close and reopen Excel.

Button	Description						
Updates	Checks for the latest updates for all BizNet products installed on the workstation. The update allows the user to upgrade to the latest version of each component without uninstalling and reinstalling.						
About	About: Provides information about the BizInsight product version						
and	and licensing expiration information. System Information button: Provides Operating System						
Support Tools	Information.						
	 View Custom XML button: This option is for Support use and provides access to BizInsight application information stored in the workbook. View Events button: Opens a Notepad document containing all 						
	BizInsight logged events. Delete Events button : Clears all entries in the BizInsight Event						
	Log. Allow Minutes for Cache Interval option: This option is for Support use only and is provided for troubleshooting purposes. ReadyCache Service data: ReadyCache Service data checkbox converts the ReadyCache from Service to Excel memory. This is an experimental feature designed to improve performance in calculation time but is not fully supported yet. Serialize Data Cache on Close option: Data Cache is created from SuperFunctions. Checking this option will serialize the ready cache data to disk. This feature is designed to improve performance in calculation time. Serialize Ready Cache on Close option: Ready Cache is created from SuperFunctions. Checking this option will serialize the ready cache data to disk. This feature is designed to improve performance in calculation time. Refresh now deletes cache option: If this option is checked, and you right-click on a table, and select 'Refresh table data NOW', the associated cache will automatically be deleted. This prevents the user from selecting the cache and deleting it via the View Data on the ribbon. Get Vaults with Ready Cache option: When Excel is closed, both ready cache and data cache are detected. Ready cache is deleted and Data Cache is serialized to disk. <i>Note</i> This entine evertides the Serialize Deady Cache option and will.						
	This option overrides the Serialize Ready Cache option and will delete the ready cache even when the Serialized Ready Cache option is checked.						

Button	 Description The Configuration button allows access to the Configuration Vizard and other settings. IMPORTANT This button is only displayed when a Connector is installed. Vizard –This button launches the Configuration Wizard where hanges can be made to connection information and stored user redentials for Cloud and on-premise databases. If your user redentials change, see <u>Changing User Credentials</u> for netructions. 										
Configuration	The Configuration button allows access to the Configuration Wizard and other settings.										
	This button is only displayed when a Connector is installed.										
	 Wizard –This button launches the Configuration Wizard where changes can be made to connection information and stored user credentials for Cloud and on-premise databases. If your user credentials change, see <u>Changing User Credentials</u> for instructions. Advanced- Opens a dialog with key configuration paths and options of the BizInsight product. General Tab –Logging should remain disabled unless troubleshooting an issue. Also, users have the option to compress or encrypt data. By default, Serialization and Encryption is disabled. 										

Getting Started

The first-time Excel is launched and BizInsight is loaded, a dialog box will appear offering a tutorial. The tutorial covers a wide variety of subjects on how to use BizInsight 7.

You can choose to view the tutorial by clicking the radio button and then click **Start** or you can skip this step by simply clicking **Cancel**. The tutorial prompt will occur once a day at the first startup of Excel.

8	×											
Which content you would like a tutorial on?												
О ві	O BizNet Sample Data											
	🗌 Don't Ask Me											
	Start											
	Cancel											

Check the **Don't Ask Me** checkbox and **Cancel** to stop the prompt from occurring again. The prompt can be re-enabled using the Reset User Preferences option in the Navigation Pane settings > Customize Startup Page Menu. See <u>Navigation Pane Settings</u> for instructions on accessing the Reset User Preferences option.



The tutorials can also be accessed via the BizNet Assistant button on the ribbon.

File	BizInsight7	Ins	ert	Page Layou	t Forn	nulas	Data	Review	v Hom	ie Vi	ew Deve	loper	Add-ins
Load BizInsight	PizNet Assistant	Select Data	<i>fx</i> Query Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	Design Mode Biz	View Data	Check for Errors	PackNGo	P Activate	🔁 Updates 🎟 About	Cor	ofiguration

Navigation Pane

The Navigation Pane allows you to easily access the different functional elements of the product.

The Navigation Pane is not displayed when Excel is opened. Use the **Load BizInsight7** button to display the Navigation Pane.

File		7 Insert		Page Layou	Formulas		Data	Review	leview Ho		View	Devel	loper
Load BizInsight7	BizNet Assistant	Select Data	<i>fx</i> Query Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	X Design Mode	Q View Data	Check for Errors	Buy Now	T Activate	🚯 Upd 🎹 Abo	ates ut	
	BizInsight												

The Navigation Pane is collapsed by default and can be expanded by clicking on the chevron arrow in the upper righthand corner of the Navigation Pane.

>	A	В		
	2		A Dizlociabt7	A
	3		S Bizinsignt/	1
	4			D C 2
	5		HOME S C	1 1 2,2 3
	6			4
	7		Enveritor	5
t1	8		Favorites	6
р Н	9		Mu Quarias	7
'is	10		My Queries	8
N	11			9
in in ite	12		BIZNET GL	10
	13			////// 11
	14		BIZProperties	12

Collapsed View

Expanded View

The ellipsis on the right side of the Navigation Pane performs the same function as the chevron arrow:



When BizInsight 5.0 is installed on the same workstation as BizInsight 7 with a Connector, the BizInsight 5.0 Navigation Pane is accessible when that product is loaded. When the Navigation Pane is expanded using the chevron, a drop-down list is accessible that can be used to switch between the two product Navigation Panes.



The chevron to the right of the drop-down list will collapse the currently displayed Navigation Pane and will display the two drop-down list elements as buttons on the left.



Left-click on either button to display the desired Navigation Pane.



BizInsight 7 Navigation Pane Header

The BizInsight 7 Navigation Pane contains two sections:

HOME	J	Q	ļ	۲ <u>۵</u>	2 5 4	Header
My Favorites				€	5 6	
BizNet Sample Data				⊙	7 8	Body
BizProperties				⊙	9 10	

The Navigation Pane Header allows you to search the Navigation Pane, refresh, save changes to the Navigation Pane and manage BizInsight settings.

🕸 BizInsight7		<
HOME	SQE	- - -

Refresh

The Refresh button refreshes the Navigation Pane when the MetaData file location has been changed to a different path. The button is a quick option to display changes without closing and re-opening Excel.



Search

Click the Magnifying Glass to search the Navigation Pane.

HOME	S 🔍 🖪 🕸
------	---------

Type the keyword in the search text box, i.e. 'Segment 1'. Notice Segment 1 was found one (1) time under BizNet GL. Click the dropdown arrow in the BizNet GL section to expand.

BizInsight7	<
SEARCH	
Segment1	\times
BizNet Sample Data (1)	\odot

Double-click the found item to jump to its location in the Navigation Pane.

BizInsight7	<
SEARCH	
Segment1	\times
BizNet Sample Data (1)	•
Segment1 Desc Functions/Information/Segment Descriptions	Double- click

The Segment 1 Description function is highlighted and ready for you to drag and drop to a cell.



<u>Save</u>

When a BizProperty is removed from the BizProperties menu of the Navigation Pane Body, clicking the **Save** button to commits the deletion. For more information on Properties, see <u>BizInsight Properties</u>.

HOME	Ç	Q ₽ ‡
------	---	--------------

<u>Settings</u>

Clicking on the gear icon on the Navigation Pane header gives you access to several settings that can be used to customize your BizInsight experience:

HOME	Ç	Q	B 🕸
------	---	---	-----

Clicking on the gear button will open the following dialog:



To return to the main Navigation Pane, click the back button on the Settings header button:



CUSTOMIZE STARTUP PAGE MENU

The **Customize Startup Page** option opens a dialog that lets you choose which menus are displayed in the Navigation Pane:



Uncheck any menus you do not want to see then click **Apply**. For example, if the BizProperties checkbox is unchecked and applied, the Navigation Pane will no longer display the BizProperties menu:



To restore a menu, go back to the **Customize Startup Page** dialog, recheck the checkbox for the hidden menu and click **Apply**. The **Reset** button reverts settings back to the application defaults.

CONNECT TO DATA

This setting is for future functionality and should not be used.

🕸 BizInsigl	ht7	<			
SETTIN	IGS				
Connect to Da	ata	^			
Select your car O SQL Server O SQL Server	nnection type Compact Edition				
Future functionality Do not adjust					
Username					
Password					
	Test Connection				

PREFERENCES

The UI preferences allows you to adjust the drop behavior and choose if you want pop-ups when dragging and dropping Properties.

BizInsight7	<
Preferences	
Click to Reset All Preferences	
Click to reset windows sizes	
The preferences below are changed after clicking "Ap	ply"
Display	
BizProperty7 Drop Behavior Always Ask	\sim
Notifications Enable Formula Editor Pop-up Enable Startup Messages Hide status messaging	
Data Cache Refresh Data older than 1 hr(s) needs to be refreshed	
Apply Car	ncel

Display

Use this section to set the default behavior for inserting BizInsight Properties into a worksheet. Clicking on the dropdown list will present 3 options:



Notifications

Use this section to control which notifications display when using BizInsight.

The **Enable Formula Editor Pop-up** checkbox controls whether the Formula Editor automatically opens when a function is dragged and dropped. This option only applies to certain functions, such as the SetBizProperty7 and GetBizProperty7 functions or any BizInsight 5.0 function. <u>This option does not apply to any functions or objects that use the *BizInsight Query* dialog.</u>

Notifications
🗖 Enable Formula Editor Pop-up
🗹 Enable Startup Messages
🗹 Hide status messaging

When the **Enable Formula Editor Pop-up** feature is turned off, use Excel's *fx* button to open the Function Argument dialog.

	Bi	zinsight						
SUM ▼ : 🗙 √(f _x)	=SetBizProperty7()						
✤ BizInsight7 <	A 1	В	С	D	E	F	G	н
🗎 HOME S 🔍 🗎 🔅	2 jerty7() 3						2	×
	Function Arguments						f	^
My Favorites	SetBizProperty7			-				
Intacct	PropertyVersion			18	-			
BizProperties (PropertyValue			1	-			
	No help available.	Propert	yName					
	Formula result =					OK	(10)	cel
	18					24	_ Can	wi l

Enable Startup Messages – This setting is not currently used and is for future functionality.



Hide status messaging - Checking this box allows you to hide the BizNet Service update status messages.



The message includes the total rows, remaining record count, and time elapsed in seconds. This option is beneficial for customers using Cloud ERP systems where data retrieval can be slower. For on-premise database connector implementations, status messaging is disabled by default.

The **Data Cache Refresh** preference allows you to control how long BizInsight uses an existing cache before going back to the ERP system for updated data. For example, changing the setting to 2.5 hours means that all refreshable data caches will be refreshed with new data after 2.5 hours has passed. See <u>Data Cache Management</u> for more details.

Data Cache Re	Data Cache Refresh						
Data older than	2.5 hr(s) needs to l	be refreshed					
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
Apply		X Cancel					

To reset BizInsight preferences back to the default, use the **Click to Reset All Preferences** button.

🕸 BizInsight7	<
Preferences	
Click to Reset All Preferences	
Click to reset windows sizes	

Navigation Pane Body

Favorites

The Favorites section is where you can pin existing nodes for easy re-access. To pin a node, right-click on the node and click **Pin to Favorites**.



Click **OK** or check the box to not show this dialog again.



My Queries

BizInsight allows you to save Data Validation lists, Functions and Tables that you create and expect to use frequently. When saved, these items are stored within the **My Queries** menu of the Navigation Pane.

BizInsight7			<
HOME	Ç	Q	ŝ
Favorites			▼
My Queries			٢
Data Validations			
Functions			
Tables			
BizNet GL			╺

To save an item to this menu, click on the **Save** button at the bottom of the **BizInsight Query** dialog.

BizInsight Query		▼ X
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Return my results as a:
Table	BizNet Sample Data 🛛 🗸	Table ~
f_{x} Function	Which data set? Segment 1 List ~	Select Columns 🗹 Remove Duplicates
Data Validation	✓ Make Dynamic □ Create Data Validations	✓ Include Column Headers ☐ Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells
Σ Expression		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Fil	Iter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode ~ =	BNE	~ R
Segment1 ~ >=	1200	~
Save		OK Cancel Start Over

Type a name for the object you are saving and then click the **Save** button.

BizInsight				
What would you like to name this table?				
BNE Segment 1 List > = 1200				
[]				
Save 🛛 Keep values	Cancel			

The **Keep values** checkbox instructs BizInsight to save the values currently used for the object's parameters.

Add Filter Copy	Filter Delet	e Filter Reset Filters			
CompanyCode	~ =	v	~		
FiscalYear	~ =	v	~		
FiscalPeriod	~ =	v	~		
When Keep values is unchecked					
Add Eilter	Liltor Dolot	a Filtar			
Add Filter Copy F	Filter Delet	e Filter Reset Filters			
Add Filter Copy F	Filter Delet	e Filter Reset Filters	~		
Add Filter Copy F CompanyCode FiscalYear	Filter Delet	e Filter Reset Filters V BNE V 2015	~ 		
Add FilterCopy FCompanyCodeFiscalYearFiscalPeriod	Filter Delet	e Filter Reset Filters ~ BNE ~ 2015 ~ Sheeti!\$A\$1	~ I ~ I ~ I ~ I		

Notice that when **Keep values** is checked, cell references are saved as well as hard coded values.

In the above example, the object being saved was a table and it will display under My Queries > Tables in the Navigation Pane.

F	avorites	╺
N	Ay Queries	۲
	Data Validations	
	Functions	
-	Tables	
	BNE Segment 1 List >= 1200	

Connector Menu(s)

All BizInsight Connectors will display in the Navigation Pane with their own menu. In the example screenshot below, the BizNet ERP GL Connector is displayed:

All objects supplied by a Connector will be grouped beneath the Connector menu and may include some or all the following items:

Functions - The Function objects return summarized data based on the parameters provided to the Function (e.g. Company, Account Number(s), FiscalYear and Fiscal Period) as well as any additional parameters pertinent to your ERP system. The data that matches the parameters is aggregated and returned to a single cell.

Biz	zNet GL	
ĭ×F	Functions	
Þ	Month-to-Date	
×	Year-to-Date	
Þ	Budget	
F	Information	

Tables – Tables (also known as "Analysis Sets") are drag and drop objects that display data from the ERP system as tables or pivots. Unlike Functions, the data is not summarized but instead all data that matches the parameters are returned and displayed. Tables allow the user to filter and pivot on the data to perform on-the-fly analysis of the data.

Bi	zNet GL
∖ F	Functions
ъ	Analysis Sets
+	Data
F	GL Information

Properties will display the built-in BizProperty functions as well as user-defined Properties. Tables (also known as "Analysis Sets") are also provided and will return a list of all Properties that have been defined.

BizProperties	5
➤ Functions	
⊃ Tables	

BizInsight 7 Navigation Pane without a Connector

Workbook Queries

When BizInsight 7 is installed without a Connector, the Navigation Pane will display a Workbook Queries section instead of Connector menus. The Workbook Queries section will display saved Functions and Tables that were created from data sets brought into Excel by a method other than a BizInsight 7 Connector.

🕸 BizInsight7	<
HOME	\square
Workbook Queries	٢
Functions	
Tables	
Data Validations	



All Workbook Query objects exist only within the workbook. They do not persist across workbooks like My Queries do for the BizInsight7 Connector version.

Right-Click Menu

BizInsight adds right-click menu selections to Excel. Options will vary based on what exactly is right-clicked.

Any Cell

Right-clicking on a cell that does not contain any kind of BizInsight object will display the following options. These options will also display if a Function is right-clicked.

Save Property – This option is provides the ability to save the contents of the selected cell as an Account Definition. You must be Online when using this option in order for the definition to be saved. \bigtriangleup **WARNING** This option will clear the contents of the elected cell.

12245		_
*	Cu <u>t</u>	
Ē	<u>С</u> ору	
Ê	Paste Options:	
	LA .	
	Paste <u>Special</u>	
<u></u>	Smart <u>L</u> ookup	
	Insert	
	Delete	
	Clear Co <u>n</u> tents	
復	<u>Q</u> uick Analysis	
	Filt <u>e</u> r	•
	S <u>o</u> rt	•
t)	Insert Comment	
8 0	<u>F</u> ormat Cells	
	Pic <u>k</u> From Drop-down List	
	Define N <u>a</u> me	_
a	L <u>i</u> nk	_
	BizNet Refresh	
	BizNet DrillDown	•
	Save Property	
	Save Property	
	Calculate Formulas	
		_

Calculate Formulas – This option recalculates all formulas in all active workbook(s). It will retrieve data from the ERP system for any data sets that are expired (see <u>Data</u> <u>Cache Management</u> for more information on data set expiration). The Calculate Formulas option does not refresh any Tables in the active workbooks.

1493160		1
<u>ж</u>	Cu <u>t</u>	
Ē	<u>С</u> ору	
i ĉ	Paste Options:	
	Ĉ	
	Paste <u>S</u> pecial	
	Insert	
	<u>D</u> elete	
	Clear Co <u>n</u> tents	
/=	<u>Q</u> uick Analysis	
	Filt <u>e</u> r ►	
	S <u>o</u> rt >	
	Insert Co <u>m</u> ment	
e- 0-	<u>F</u> ormat Cells	
	Pic <u>k</u> From Drop-down List	
	Define N <u>a</u> me	
	Hyperl <u>i</u> nk	
	Save Property	
	Calculate Formulas	
	Exponential Reporting Drilldown 🔸	
	How old is this data?	
	Refresh selected data NOW!	
		4

Function Right-Click Menu

When a cell containing a BizInsight Function is right-clicked, the following items are displayed:

BizInsight DrillDown - This option presents you with the list of available drilldown targets for the function you have right-clicked on. To drilldown on a Function, right-click the Function, select **BizInsight Drilldown**, and select the desired drilldown target. A new tab will be created within the workbook that displays all the records that make up the amount returned by the Function.

BizNet Refresh BizNet DrillDown ► Save Property						
Save Property Calculate Formulas BizInsight Drilldown How old is this data?	Table Pivot Table SuperTable GL QTD Transaction Detail by Segment 1					
	GL MTD Transaction Detail GL MTD Transaction Detail by Segment 1 GL QTD Transaction Detail					

🔰 Note

For more details on the drilldown options, please see the <u>Drilldown</u> section of this document.

How old is this data? – This option will let you know how old the data is that was used for the Function's result.



For more information about data caching and data set ages, see Data Cache Management.

Refresh Selected data NOW! – This option will refresh the data set being used by the selected Function. Once the data set has been refreshed, you will be asked whether to have BizInsight recalculate all functions or just the selected function. BizNet <u>strongly</u> recommends recalculating all functions to avoid other functions that use the same data set displaying incorrect amounts.

🐼 Su	ICCESS	\times
?	The selected data has been refreshed! What would you like to do with related formulas?	
	→ Let BizInsight refresh formulas (Recommended)	
	→ Refresh formulas manually	
	ОК	



The **Refresh Selected Data NOW!** option overrides both the Data Cache Refresh setting and the Check for New Data selection for the data set. For more information on data caching, see <u>Data Cache Management</u>.

Table Right-Click Menu

When any cell of a BizInsight Table is right-clicked, the following items are displayed:

	Company	Segmenti	Segment	2 Segment3	Account	Acco	ountD	Companyl	AccountG	Ac	count
	BNE	1309	1000	000	130910000	Due	from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
I	BNE	1309	1000	000	130910000	Due	from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000	000	130910000	Due	from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000	000	130910000	Due	from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000	000	100010000	n	from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000 💑	Cu <u>t</u>			from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000 🗎	<u>С</u> ору			from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000 💼	Paste Optio	ns:		from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000				from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000				from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1309	1000	Paste <u>S</u> pecia	al		from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
I	BNE	1309	1000	Insert			from	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000	<u>D</u> elete			estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000	 Clear Conte	nts		estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000 🚬				estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000 🛅	<u>Q</u> uick Analy	/sis		estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000	Filt <u>e</u> r		•	estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000	S <u>o</u> rt		•	estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000 🛌	Insert Comr	nent		estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000 🞽		incine .		estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000 📰	<u>F</u> ormat Cell	S		estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
I	BNE	1809	0000 🝺	<u>E</u> dit Query			estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000 📰	D <u>a</u> ta Range	Properties		estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000	Parameters			estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	1809	0000	D C I			estmer	BizNet Enf	1	As	sets
	BNE	5050	0000	<u>R</u> etresh			cers C	BizNet Ent	5	Exp	pense
	BNE	5050	0000	BizInsight T	able Options	•	R	efresh Table			pense
	BNE	5050	0000	000	505000000	Offi	Т	able Parame	ters		pense
	BNE	5050	0000	000	505000000	Offi	F	dit Quenz			pense
	BNE	5050	0000	000	505000000	Offi					pense
	BNE	5050	0000	000	505000000	Offi	К	erresh table	aata NOW!		pense
ī	BNE	5050	0000	000	505000000	Offi	H	low old is thi	is data?		pense
	BNE	5050	0000	000	505000000	Offi	cers C	BizNet Enf	5	Exp	pense

Company Segment1 Segment2 Segment3 Account AccountD Company AccountG Account

BizInsight Table Options

Refresh Table – This option will update the table with any changes created by changed filter parameters.

Table Parameters – This option provides the user advanced access to Table properties. Users should not need to access this dialog often. The easier interface to use is the next option, **Edit Query**. For more information about this option, see <u>Table Parameters</u>.

BizInsight Query	~ X
Create a Table Return my results as a: Table v Remove Duplicates	Select Columns
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode · = · BNE	~
FiscalYear × = × 2012	~ .
Save	OK Cancel Start Over Advanced

Edit Query – Reopens the BizInsight Query dialog for easy editing of the table's properties.

Refresh table data NOW! – This option will refresh the data set being used by the selected Table. Once the data set has been refreshed, you will be asked whether to have BizInsight recalculate all functions and tables or just the selected table. BizNet <u>strongly</u> recommends recalculating all objects to ensure other objects using the same data set are updated to display the most current information.

🐼 Su	Iccess	×
?	The selected data has been refreshed! What would you like to do with related formulas/tables?	
	→ Let BizInsight refresh all (Recommended)	
	→ Refresh formulas/tables manually	
		ОК

The **Refresh Selected Data NOW!** option overrides the Data Cache Refresh setting as well as the Check for New Data selection for the data set. For more information on data caching, see Data Cache Management.

How old is this data? – This option will let you know how old the data is that is displayed in the Table.

🐼 Biz Insight	\times
The selected table data is 0 hours, 8 minutes, 30 seconds old	
ок]

For more information about data caching and data set ages, see Data Cache Management.

Pivot Table Right-Click Menu

When a BizInsight created pivot table is right-clicked, the following options are available.



Calculate Formulas - This option recalculates all formulas in all active workbook(s). It will retrieve data from the ERP system for any data sets that are expired (see <u>Data Cache</u> <u>Management</u> for more information on data set expiration). The Calculate Formulas option does not refresh any Tables in the active workbooks.

BizInsight Table Options - These options perform the same way as they do for a Table.

BizInsight Functions

BizInsight comes with several pre-defined Functions that can be dragged and dropped from the Navigation Pane. This section describes how to work with these pre-defined Functions.

Click on **Functions > Month-to-Date** to expand. **Click** and **drag** the specific function, i.e. MTDNET.



Function names will vary across Connectors. The names shown in this document may be different from what you see in your environment.

By default, the **BizInsight Query** dialog box opens automatically when a Funciton or Table is dragged and dropped into an Excel worksheet.
BizInsight Query			- ×
What would you like to create? ☐ Table	Where is your data? BizNet Sample Data × Which data set? GL Balances ×	What action would you like to take? Image: Comparison of the second	
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Fil	ter Reset Filters		
CompanyCode · =	v	~ 	
FiscalYear 👻 =	v	~ 	
FiscalPeriod =	~	 Image: A state of the state of	
Segment1 ~ =	~	-	
Segment2	¥	- 🖳	
Segment3	v	~ 	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Save		OK Cancel Start Over	

The BizInsight Query dialog defaults to "Function" when the object being dragged and dropped is a Function and Table when the object being dropped is a Table. If you dragged the wrong object, you can always change the selection to the object type you want. All pre-built functions can be adjusted on the fly to meet your needs.

The **BizInsight Query** dialog will show required parameters in **bold** text. For example, the MTDNET function default parameters are Company and FiscalYear.



IMPORTANT

When a parameter is required, a single value must be supplied for that parameter unless otherwise documented. Each Connector includes a Spec Workbook that will document if any parameters support multiple values.

Use the Add Filter button to add filter parameters. Records must satisfy all listed filter parameters to be included in the aggregation. For example, in the screenshot below, the only records that will be summed will be those that match the values supplied for the selected parameters.

CompanyCode	v	-	٣	BNE	~ 🖳			
FiscalYear	~	=	v	2011	- 🖳			
FiscalPeriod	v	=	v	7	~ 🖳			
Segment1	v	=	~	1000	- 🖳			
	÷		Ŷ		- 🖳			
Expression	^							
CompanyCode								
FiscalYear						1		
Profile						-		
Account						OK	Cancel	Start Over
AccountDace	Y				L			

Use **Delete Filter** to delete an unwanted filter or simply leave them blank. **Reset Filters** clears out ALL filters.

📕 Note

If a parameter cannot be deleted using the **Delete Filter** button, it is a required parameter and must be provided a value.

Each filter parameter has an operator dropdown list with the available operators:

Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete Filter	Reset Filters
CompanyCode ~	= ~	BNE 🗸
FiscalYear ~	= ~	2011 🗸 🖳
FiscalPeriod ~	= ~	7 ~
Segment1 ~	= ~	1000 ~ 🖳
Account	v	·
	= ^	
	>	
Save	>=	OK Cancel Start Over

📝 Note

If the operator dropdown list only contains "=" operator, the parameter is restricted to a single value.

Filter parameter values can be manually typed into the available combo box field, selected from the drop down list when populated or pointed to a cell for its value. To specify a cell reference for the value (*recommended for any parameters that you want to update frequently*), click the grid button to the right of the filter value field to browse to a cell.



- 1. Once a parameter has been configured to use a cell reference, a hard coded value cannot be used. Delete the parameter and add it again if it needs to be changed back to a hard coded value.
- 2. Available values are dictated by the ERP design. For example, ERP systems that store company data in separate databases will not have values listed in the filter parameter combo box.

BizInsight Query		~ ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	What action would you like to take?
Table	BizNet GL v	~
f_{x} Function	Which data set?	What information would you like returned
Data Validation	GL Balances Year to Date ~	NetAmount ~
Expression		
Add Filter Copy Filter De	lete Filter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode ~ =	BNE	~
FiscalPeriod ~ =	× 7	~ I
FiscalYear ~ =	~ 2013	~ I
Account * >	= ` 'Sheet1'! \$A\$ 29	ັ 🛐 1309
Save		OK Cancel Start Over

📝 Note

Excel range names can be used in lieu of cell references but must be selected in the workbook; they cannot be manually typed into the Query dialog.

Once the BizInsight Query dialog is configured, click **OK**. Select the cell in which you want the data to drop. The default target cell will be the cell the Function was originally dropped into.

Click OK.

Cell Selectio	n		- >	×
Target Cell	Sheet1'!\$E\$12	K		

Below is an example of data returned for a MTDNET using a Function:

=Biz Fisc	2SuperFunc(' alPeriod ="	'BizNet Samp & '',Segment:	ole Data", 1 =", Shee	"GL Balance et1!\$B\$2,Sh	es", "Sum (f neet1!\$B\$3	VetAmoun 3,Sheet1!\$8	t)","@Com 3\$4,Sheet1	panyCode !\$A7) *-1	=" & ",@F	iscalYear	=" & ",
	А	В	с	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J	К
1											
2	Company	BNE									
З	Year	2013									
4	Period	1									
5											
б		MTDNET									
7	1310	3,304.16									
8											
9											

📝 Note

The above function uses the **Reverse sign** option to display the amount as a positive number.

BizInsight Query		
What would you like to create?	Where is your data? BizNet Sample Data ×	What action would you like to take?
f_{x} Function	Which data set? GL Balances	What information would you like returned NetAmount ^v
Data Validation		Reverse sign
Σ Expression		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Fi	Iter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode ~ =	'Sheet1'!\$B\$2	~ E BNE
FiscalYear =	Sheet!!\$B\$3	2013

Editing an Existing Function

To edit an existing Function's parameters, click on the fx Query Data button ribbon.



The Query Data dialog will display the current filter parameters and settings for the selected function.



IMPORTANT

If the parameter is designed to provide available values, those values will not display when the filter parameter is a cell reference.

To save time, use an existing function of similar design as the basis for new functions you need to create.

Using Operators

BizInsight supports the following operators:

Operator	Description				
=	Equal To: Used with single values and only exact matches are returned.				
!=	Does Not Equal: Used with single values; records matching this criterion are excluded.				
>	Value(s) is Greater Than.				
<	Value(s) are Less Than.				
>=	Value(s) are Greater Than or Equal To.				
<=	Value(s) are Less Than or Equal To.				
LIKE	Compares numbers and text. The only available wild card is an asterisk ("*"). Note UKE is the only operator that can be used with a wildcard.				
IN	Creates an inclusive list of values for filtering. For example: Segment1 IN ('1205','1310') will return balances where Segment1 is either '1205' or 1310'.				
NOT IN	Creates an exclusive list of values for filtering. For example: Segment1 NOT IN ('1000', '1200') will return balances for all Segment1 values except '1000' and '1200'.				

To pass parameter values using cell references, the cell should only contain the values being passed and not the operator, unless when using an Expression (see <u>Expressions</u>).

	BizInsight Query		
S DATA REVIEW	What would you like to create? —	Where is your data?	What action would you
	Table	BizNet GL v	Sum ~
an View Check Activa e Data for Errors	f	Which data set?	What information woul
ight	Jx Function	GL Balances Year to Date ~	NetAmount
	🚃 Data Validation		
А			
1	Σ Expression		
2			
3			
5	Add Filter Copy Filter Delet	e Filter Reset Filters	
6			
7	CompanyCode ~ =	BNE	~ <u>-</u>
8	FiscalPeriod - =	~ 7	- III
9 Year			
10 Period	FiscalYear ~ =	~ 2013	~
11	Account	Shootill # # # 10	1309
12 ACCOUNT	Account	Sheeti (\$A\$15	
14	Segment1 [×] IN	'Sheeti'! \$A\$ 16	1100','1110','1200'
15 Segment1			
16 1100','1110','1200'			
17			

BizInsight Tables

Tables display all matching records from the ERP system.

When a pre-built Table object (also known as an "Analysis set") is dragged and dropped from the Navigation Pane, a simplified **BizInsight Query** dialog opens.

BizInsigl	nt Query						, ;
Create	a Table —————eturn my results a	s a: Tabi	le v re Duplicates	Select Columns			¢
Add Filter	Copy Filter	Delete Filter	Reset Filters				
Save				ОК	Cancel	Start Over	Advanced

Use the Select Columns button to select which columns to return from the data set.

Columns	~ X
Select All	^
Account	
□ AccountDesc	
AccountGroup	
AccountGroupDesc	
AccountKey	
BeginningBalance	
CompanyCode	
CompanyName	
EndingBalance	
CreditAmount	
DebitAmount	
FiscalPeriod	
FiscalYear	
NetAmount	
Segment1	
	\sim
OK Cancel	

Check the checkbox next to columns you want included in your table or click the **Select All** checkbox at the top to select all columns.

The available columns can be sorted in ascending or descending alphabetical order by toggling the up/down arrows. The curved arrow returns the columns to their default order.





BizInsight Query		
		~ ~
Create a Table		
Return my results as a:	Table v	Select Columns
	Remove Duplicates	🗌 Make Dynamic 🚬 🌙
	and the second second	

Check the **Remove Duplicates** checkbox to make sure the table only returns unique values.

M IMPORTANT

The **Remove Duplicates** checkbox applies to ALL columns being returned so multiple values could be returned for a column if another column's value is unique.

To easily change the filter parameters for the table, use the **Make Dynamic** checkbox.

BizInsight Query		Ś
		3
Create a Table		>
Return my results as a:	Table v	Select Columns
	Remove Duplicates	🗹 Make Dynamic
and and many		man and a

When the **Make Dynamic** checkbox is checked, an expression representing the filter parameters used by the table will be entered in a cell above the table.

BNE				
2015				
1				
@CompanyCode= 'BNE' @FiscalYe	ar= '2015' (#[Fis	calPeriod]= '1')		
AccountDesc	Account	CreditAmount	DebitAmount	NetAmount
Due from BNC	13091000000	0	717.16	717.16
Investment in BNC	18090000000	0	8887	8887
Officers Comp-BizNet Ent	50500000000	-120816.8	150890.8	30074
Income Tax Expense-BizNet Ent	55000000000	-27759.65	34669.65	6910

tip

Use cell references to get values in your workbook so that the table can be updated by changing an input parameter's value located elsewhere in the workbook.

	="(@CompanyCode='''& <mark>Sheet1!\$A\$1</mark> &	"" @FiscalYear=	"&Sheet1!\$A\$2	&"" (#[FiscalPe	eriod]= " <mark>'&She</mark>	et1!\$A\$3&"	')"
		A	В	С	D	Е	F	G
	1	BNE						
	2	2015						
	3	1						
Ч	4							
	5							
	б							
	7	@CompanyCode= 'BNE' @FiscalYe	ar='2015' (#[Fis	calPeriod]='1')				
	8							
	9	AccountDesc	Account	CreditAmount	DebitAmount	NetAmount		
	10	Due from BNC	13091000000	0	717.16	717.16		
	11	Investment in BNC	1809000000	0	8887	8887		
	12	Officers Comp-BizNet Ent	5050000000	-120816.8	150890.8	30074		

Click the **Advanced** button in the Query Dialog box to switch from the simplified view and display all available options.

BizInsight Query	- ×
Create a Table Return my results as a: Table Return my results as a: Antipological as a: Antipological as a Antipological Antipological as a Antipological Ant	¢
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters	
Simplified View	
Save OK Cancel Start Over Adv	anced

BizInsight Query		▼ ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Return my results as a:
Table	BizNet Sample Data ×	Table ~
fx Function	Which data set?	
	Accounts	Select Columns
Data Validation	Make Dynamic	✓ Include Column Headers
		✓ Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells
		_
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Fi	Advanced View]
		_

The **Include Column Headers** option is checked by default and ensures that column headers are displayed when the table is added to the workbook. Unchecking this option will prevent column headers from displaying.

BizInsight Query		→ ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Return my results as a:
Table	BizNet Sample Data	Table ~
$f_{\mathbf{x}}$ Function	Which data set? Accounts	Select Columns
Data Validation	Make Dynamic	✓ Include Column Headers ☐ Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells
Expression		

The **Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells** option will ensure that formulas directly adjacent to the table are copied down to new rows that are inserted when the table is refreshed.

	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	К	L	м	N	
1															
2	Company	BNE													
3	Year	2013	Bizl	nsight C	Query										ΨX
4	Period	1		What would	l vou like to	create?	What		data?		Potur	a may recult	te ac a:		- 1
5					,		vvne	re is your o	ualar			i ny tesui	ls ds d.		
6	Segment 1	MTDNET		Table			Biz	Net Sample	e Data	Ý	Table	; ;			
7	1100	1,824.00		C			Whi	ch data seť	?						
8	1110			Jx Functi	on		Ac	ounts	-	v	Solo	ct Column	Re Re	move Duni	icates
9	1200						710	ouno			Sele	et column		move bup	leates
10	1205			🚃 Data V	alidation			Make Dyna	mic		V In	clude Colu	mn Header	c.	
12	1210										🗹 Fil	Down Fo	rmulas in A	djacent Ce	lls
13	1350													,	
14	1430			Expres	sion										
15	1510														
16	1515														
17	1520		Ad	Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset					rs						
18	1525														
19	1540	Mart .		~~~~~			~~~		a far the second se	~~~~~					
_	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н							
1	-														
2	Company	BNE													
3	Year	2013													
4	Penou	1													
6	Segment 1	MTDNFT													
7	1100	1.824.00													
8	1110														
9	1200	7,105.00							<u> </u>						
10	1205	(106.00)													
11	1809	8,887.00													
12	1310	(3,304.16)													
13	1350	(208.00)													
14	1430	(93.00)													
15	1510	-													
16	1515	(2,400.00)													

Editing an Existing Table

A table's query definition can be edited by clicking on the *fx* Query Data button on the BizInsight ribbon with the cursor on any cell of the table or by right-clicking on a table cell and choosing **BizInsight Table Options** > Edit Query.

Company	c .		ont1	Sogmont?	Sogmo	n+2	Account	AccountD	Companyl	Accourt
BNE	11	525	anu	3egment2 1000	nnn	10	152510000	Acc Depr-	BizNet Ent	1
BNE	1	ж	Cut				152520000	Acc Depr-	BizNet Ent	1
BNE	1	6es	Con				152520000	Acc Depr-	BizNet Ent	1
BNE	1	- <u>-</u>	<u>v</u> op	,			154520000	Acc Depr-	BizNet Ent	1
BNE	5	Ľ	Past	e Options:			510020000	Depreciat	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5		Ā				520011000	Office Exc	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5		Past	e <u>S</u> pecial			520011000	Office Exp	BizNet Enf	5
BNE	5		Ince	rt.			520011000	Office Exp	BizNet Enf	5
BNE	5		Tupe				520011000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5		Dele	τe			520012000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5		Clea	r Co <u>n</u> tents			520012000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5	۶.	Quio	k Analysis			520021000	Office Exp	BizNet Enf	5 🦿
BNE	5		Filt <u>e</u>	r		F	520021000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5		Sort				520021000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5 🦿
BNE	5	*					520021000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5 🌛
BNE	5	Ŀ	Inse	rt Co <u>m</u> ment			520022000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5	e- 0-	<u>F</u> orr	nat Cells			520022000	Office Exp	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5	-	<u>E</u> dit	Query			522510000	Supplies-I	BizNet Enf	5 🧪
BNE	5	-	Data	- Range Pror	nerties		522520000	Supplies-	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5	<u>-</u>	0 000	, interruption	, cracom		524010000	Maintena	BizNet Enf	5 🦿
BNE	5	·L[?]	Para	<u>m</u> eters			524020000	Maintena	BizNet Enf	5 🧪
BNE	5	l.e	<u>R</u> efr	esh			525011000	Rent-Stor	BizNet Ent	5
BNE	5		Bizlr	nsight Table	Options	×.	Refre:	sh Table	1	5
BNE	53	250		1200	003		Table	Parameters	1	5
BNE	53	250		1200	004		E dit C		1	5 3
BNE	52	250		2100	001		Ealt C	luery	1	5 🔽
BNE	5:	250		2100	002		Refre:	sh table data	NOW!	5 🍸
BNE	5:	250		2200	003		How	old is this da	ita? 1	5 🍦
PALE	5:	250		2200	004		52502200	Rent-Gall	BizNet Ent	5

M WARNING

If the Make Dynamic checkbox was used for the table, the **BizInsight Query** dialog is unable to recreate the expression in the traditional filter parameters view.

F					
	@CompanyCode= 'BNE'	Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete Filter	Reset Filters	
	AccountDesc	CompanyCode ~	= ~	BNE ~	
0	Due from BNC				
1	Investment in BNC	FiscalYear		2015	
2	Officers Comp-BizNet Er	(* EiscalBeriod	~ _	~ h	
3	Income Tax Expense-Biz	riscairenou			

Either delete and recreate the table with the appropriate expression or create a new expression to replace the existing expression in the cell. See the next section, <u>Expressions</u> for details on recreating the expression instead of the table.

Expressions

Most filtering needs can be handled by the **fx Function** option, such as:

• Ranges of accounts

Segment1 ~	>= ~	1000 👻 🖳
Segmenti ~	<=	1199 ~ 🖳

• Lists of accounts

Segment1	IN ~	'fx'!\$C\$7:\$C\$11	 I100,1110,1200,1205,1809,

• Exclusion of account(s)

Segment1 ~	>= ~	1000	~
Segment1 ~	<= ~	1999	~
Segment1	!= ~	1100	~

• Wildcard

Segment1 ~	LIKE	1*	-

The logical operator being used by the *fx* Function is the AND operator. This means that records must satisfy <u>all</u> the filter criteria to be returned.

When something more involved is needed, that is filtering that requires an OR operator, BizInsight provides the Expression capability to address that need.

BizInsight Query		▼ X
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Ó
Table	BizNet GL	~
f_{x} Function	Which data set? Accounts	v
🚃 Data Validation		-
Σ Expression)	
✓ Include required parameters?		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete F	ilter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode ~ =	BNE	~
Save		OK Cancel Start Over

Examples of situations where an OR operator is needed:

- (Segment1>=1000 and Segment1<=1050) **OR** (Segment1=1200)
- (Segment1='1100' and Segment2='00') **OR** (Segment1 LIKE '21*')

Creating Expressions

1. To create an Expression, click on the *fx* **Query Data** button on the BizInsight ribbon.



2. Select Expression.

BizInsight Query		- ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	¢
f_{X} Function	Which data set?	
Data Validation		
∑ Expression ✓ Include required parameters?	Expression used for: Table = Checked Function = Unchecked	
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filte	er Reset Filters	
La mana	when the second s	

 If the expression will be used for filtering a Table, leave the Include required parameters checkbox checked. If the expression will be used for a Function, uncheck this checkbox.



When creating a Table object, the <u>Make Dynamic</u> checkbox can be used to create an expression for that Table.

4. Select where the data is located from the **Where is your data** drop down list. If the data is being retrieved by a Connector, choose the Connector from the drop down. If the data is coming from a table that has been loaded to BizInsight's in memory cache, choose Excel.

BizInsight Query		- X
What would you like to create? Table f_x Function Data Validation	Where is your data? Excel BizNet GL	\$
∑ Expression ✓ Include required parameters?		~~~~

5. Select the data set against which the expression will be used from the **Which data set** drop down list.

BizInsight Query		- ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data? BizNet GL	¢
f _x Function	Which data set?	
Data Validation	Account Groups ^ Account Structure Accounts	
∑ Expression✓ Include required parameters?	Budget Codes Companies Company Name	
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter	GL Balances GL Balances Year to Date	

6. If the **Include required parameters** checkbox is checked, the data set's required parameters will be added to the filter section. Provide values for those parameters or use cell references.



Leave Include required parameters checked if the expression will be used with a Table.

BizInsight Query		- ×
What would you like to creat	e? Where is your data? BizNet GL × Which data set?	¢
Jx Function	GL Balances	
∑ Expression ✓ Include required param	neters?	
Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete F tere Reset Filters	
CompanyCode ~	= · ·	
FiscalYear ·	= ~	

7. Add all other parameters needed for filtering. Select the OR operator and add parentheses where needed.

What would you like to create? Where is your data? Table BizNet GL f_x Function BizNet GL f_x Function BizNet GL f_x Function CL Balances f_x Data Validation Vhich data set? Include required parameters? Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters (\checkmark Segment1 $(\checkmark$ Segment1 \checkmark = \checkmark 1000 \checkmark = \checkmark 1199 \bigcirc)) \checkmark AND \checkmark	BizInsight Query			- ×
J Function GL Balances GL Balances GL Balances GL Balances GL Balances Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters ((~ Segment1 ~ >= ~ 1000 ~) ~ AND ~ Reset Filters ((~ Segment1 ~ <= ~ 1199 ~)) ~ OR ~ Reset Filters	What would you like to create?	Where is your data? BizNet GL ×		¢
Expression Include required parameters? Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters ((~ Segment1 ~ > = ~ 1000 ~) ~ AND ~ R (~ Segment1 ~ < = ~ 1199 ~)) ~ OR ~ R	Jx Function Image: Data Validation	GL Balances		
((~ Segment1 ~ >= ~ 1000 ~) ~ AND ~] (~ Segment1 ~ <= ~ 1199 ~)) ~ OR ~]	∑ Expression □ Include required parameters? Add Filter Copy Filter	ter Reset Filters		
(Segment1 C <= 0 1199 C)) OR C	((× Segment1 × >	>= · 1000	•) • AND • 🔣	
(~ Segment1 ~ = ~ 1309 ~) ~ AND ~	(~ Segment1 ~ (~ Segment1 ~	<= [•] 1199 = [•] 1309) · OR · • AND · • 	

8. Click **OK** when your expression is complete.

((Segment 1	>= ~	1000	
(<= ~	1199	")) ~ OR ~ 🖳
(= ~	1309) · AND ·
Save		(OK Cancel Start Over

9. Select the cell you want the expression dropped into and click **OK**.

Cell Selectic	n	× ×
Target Cell	'Constructing'!\$B\$3	¢

The expression will be dropped into that cell.

	А	В	С	D	Е	F	G	Н	- I
1									
2									
3	Example Expression	(((#[Segme	ent1]>='100	0') AND (#	[Segment1	.]<='1199'))	OR (#[Seg	ment1]='1:	309'))
4									
-									

10. Once your expression is created it can be used as a parameter in a Function or Table. To use an Expression as a filter parameter, choose the **Expression** parameter from the filter parameter drop down list and reference the cell containing the expression.

Add Filter Copy Fil	ter Delete F	ilter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode	~ =	Constructing'! \$A\$ 1	- BNE
FiscalYear	~ =	Constructing'! \$A\$ 2	~ 🔣 2012
Fiscal Period	~ =	Constructing'!\$A\$3	~ I
Expression	~ =	Constructing'!\$A\$6	(((#[Segment1]>='1000')

Expression Fundamentals

Before walking through how to construct Expressions, there are a couple key concepts to understand: Logical Operators and Operator Precedence.

Logical Operators

When working with Expressions, there are two logical operators that are available to join expressions: **AND** and **OR**

((~ Segment1 ~	>= ~	1000	~) ~	AND ~
(<= ~	1199	~)) ~	OR Y
(= ~	1309	~) ~	AND
		_		OR
	man and a second		~~	L'and a second

These two operators and what they mean are described below.

Operator	Meaning and Use
AND	When using AND, the data must satisfy both sides of your equation. Segment1>='1100' AND Segment1<='1205' Data will only be retrieved for accounts where Segment1 is between 1100 and 1205.
OR	When using OR, the data must satisfy at least one side of the equation. Segment1=1100 OR Segment1=1200 Data will only be retrieved for accounts that begin with 1100 and 1200.

Operator Precedence

Operator precedence is a mathematical rule that is used to clearly indicate which operations to perform first in a mathematical expression. In BizInsight, you can use parentheses to control the order in which an expression is evaluated.

To illustrate the importance of parentheses, consider the following two formulas and the impact the parentheses have on the result:

Α	В	С	D
10	20	15	30
A + B - C + D	=	45	
(A+B) - (C+D)	=	-15	

Without the parenthesis, the formula is evaluated left to right. The use of the parentheses instructs Excel to evaluate the formulas within the parentheses before the subtraction.

Constructing Expressions

When you first start working with Expressions, the most important first step to take is to <u>write</u> <u>it out</u>! This will help you understand what logical operators and parentheses are needed to ensure you get the right result.

Identify subexpressions like the following, notice the logical operators:



In the above example, the **AND** operator is used to ensure that only accounts between 1000 and 1199 are selected. The **OR** operator ensures that any account that begins with 1309 is also returned. Remember, the **OR** operator specifies that results are returned if subexpressions on either side of the **OR** are satisfied.

BizInsight Query		- ×
What would you like to create? Table	Where is your data? BizNet GL ^v	٥
f_{x} Function	Which data set? GL Balances	
Data Validation		
Expression Include required parameters?		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filt	ter Reset Filters	
((× Segment1 × >	= ` 1000 `) ` AND ` 🖳	
(= ` 1199 ` OR ` .	
(: · · 1309 · · AND · 🔣	
- man	hanne had a serie and have a series of the s	

Once the Expression is written out, you're ready to build it in the **BizInsight Query** dialog.

Add double parentheses around any subexpression that uses an **AND** operator.

((~	Segment1 ~	>= ~	1000	v)	×	AND	· R
(~	Segment1 ~	<= ~	1199	v))	v	AND	~

Change the operator to **OR** between subexpressions:

(((~ Segment1	>= ~	1000	~) ~ AND ~ 🖳
((~ Segment1	<= ~	1199	~)) ~ OR ~ 🔣
	(~ Segment1	= ~	1309	~) ~ AND ~

Expression Examples

Following are examples of some common complex expressions and how they are represented in the **BizInsight Query** dialog:

Example 1: Range plus single account

Step 1.

Identify your subexpressions and, until you get the hang of creating expressions, add a function to calculate the expected amounts each subexpression should return:

Segment	L	MTDNET
1000	1199	(146,070.91)
1309		10177.91
	Sum	(135,893.00)

Step 2.

Build your expression putting extra parentheses around any subexpression that uses the **AND** operator.

(~ Segment1 ~ <= ~ 1199 ~)) ~ OR ~ II (~ Segment1 ~ = ~ 1309 Subexpression 2 ~) ~ AND ~ II	((Segment1 ~	>= ` 1000	Subexpression 1	~ AND ~
(~ Segment1 ~ = ~ 1309 Subexpression 2 ~) ~ AND ~ 🖳	(* Segment1 *	<= ` 1199	~))	~ OR ~
	(~ Segment1 ~	= 1309	Subexpression 2	× AND ×

Step 3.

Add the Expression to a Function.

В	С	D	🚃 Data	Validation						
1000 throu	ugh 1199 + 13	109								
			N N							
Seg	ment1	MTDNET	Z Expr	ession						
1000	1199	(146,070.91)								
1309		10177.91								
	Sum	(135,893.00)	Add Filter	Copy Filter	1 [Delete Fi	lter	Reset Filters		
				L			_			and the second second
(((#[Segm	ent1]>='1000	') AND	CompanyCod	e	v	=	v	BNE	v	ĸ
(#[Segmer	nt1]<='1199')]) OR 🥿 🚽	Ele es IV-se					DALE		
(#[Segmer	nt1]='1309'))		Fiscalitear			=		2015		ĸ
			Expression		v	=	Ŷ	Examples!\$B\$8	v	K
			1							

(((#[Segment1]>='1000']) AND	(135,893.00)
(#[Segment1]<='1199'))	OR	
(#[Segment1]='1309'))		

Example 2: Two different ranges

Step 1.

Identify your subexpressions:

Segment	ti 🛛	MTDNET
1000	1199	(146,070.91)
1400	1499	(1,155.56)
	Sum	(147,226.47)

Step 2.

Build your expression putting extra parentheses around all subexpressions that use the **AND** operator and including the OR operator between subexpressions.

(🎽 Segment1	~ >= ~	1000	Subexpression 1	~) ~	AND ~
(~ Segment1	~ <= ~	1199		~ <mark>))</mark> ~	OR ~
((~ Segment1	~ >= ~	1400	Subexpression 2	~) ~	AND ~

Step 3.

Add the Expression to a Function.

	147,220.47)
(#[Segment1]<='1199')) OR	
((#[Segment1]>='1400') AND	
(#[Segment1]<='1499')))	

Example 3: A range of Segment1 values that excludes an account in that range

Step 1.

Identify your subexpressions:

Segment1		MTDNET
1000	1999	2,559,411.58
1310		1,477,012.95
	Sum	1,082,398.63

Step 2.

Build your expression:

(× Segment1 ×	>= ~	1000 ^v) ~	AND Y
(× Segment1 ×	<= ~	1999 ~) ~	AND ~
(~ Segment1 ~	!= ~	1310 ~) ~	AND ~

Step 3.

Add the expression to a function.

```
((#[Segment1] >= '1000') AND 1,082,398.63
(#[Segment1] <= '1999') AND
(#[Segment1] <> '1310'))
```



IMPORTANT

When an account is being excluded from a range, the exclusion must directly follow the range that picks up the account. The following would not be valid:

((× Segment1	× >=	× 1000	~)	~	AND	~
(× Segment1	~ <=	× 1999	v))	v	OR	~
((~ Segment1	~ >=	~ 2000	~)	~	AND	~
(^v Segment1	× <=	× 2200	~))	~	AND	*
(× Segment1	× !=	× 1310	~)	×	AND	~

Example 4: Two different ranges of Segment1 values with different Segment2 for each range

Step 3.

Identify your subexpressions:

	Segmer	it1	Segment2	MTDNET
l	1000	1199	1000	(156,481.81)
	1400	1499	2000	-748.95
			Sum	(157,230.76)

Step 4.

Build your expression:

((~	Segment1 ~	>=	~ 1000		~) ~	AND 🗸 🛄
(~	Segment1	<=	~ 1199	Subexpression 1	~) ~	AND -
(~	Segment2 ~	=	~ 1000		~)) ~	OR ~
((~	Segment1 ~	>=	~ 1400		~) ~	AND 🕤
((~ (~	Segment1 ° Segment1 °	>= <=	~ 1400 ~ 1499	Subexpression 2	~) ~ ~) ~	AND ~

Step 4.

Add the expression to a function.

(((#[Segment1]>='1000') AND	(157,230.76)
(#[Segment1]<='1199') AND	
(#[Segment2]='1000')) OR	
((#[Segment1]>='1400') AND	
(#[Segment1]<='1499') AND	
(#[Segment2]='2000')))	

Example 5: Two ranges and list of accounts

Step 1.

Identify your subexpressions:

1				
	Segment1		Segment2	MTDNET
	1000	1199	1000	(156,481.81)
	1200			101,511.60
	1309			10,177.91
	1350			(2,594.64)
	1400	1499	2000	-748.95
			Sum	(48,135.89)
- 2				

Step 2.

Build your expression:

((v	Segment1	v	>=	~	1000	v)	¢	AND ~
(v	Segment1	~	<=	v	1199	v)	Ŷ	AND ~
(~	Segment2	Ŷ	=	~	1000	v))	v	OR ~
(v	Segment1	v	IN	~	'Examples'!\$B\$32:\$B\$34	v)	Ŷ	OR ~
((v	Segment1	Ÿ	>=	v	1400	Ŷ)	Ŷ	AND ~
(v	Segmenti	Ŷ	<=	Ŷ	1499	v)	Ŷ	AND ~
(~	Segment2	~	=	~	2000	v))	v	AND ~

🚺 Note

Notice the use of cell references for the **IN**. This is the easiest way to create a list of accounts for an expression; list them in separate cells and reference them. This method creates an expression with cell references that you probably don't want to use so be sure to Copy/Paste/Special/Values to replace the cell references with values.



Step 5.

Add the Expression to a Function.

(((#[Segment1]>='1000') AND	(48,135.89)
(#[Segment1]<='1199') AND	
(#[Segment2]='1000')) OR	
(#[Segment1]IN ('1200','1309','1350'))	
OR ((#[Segment1]≻='1400') AND	
(#[Segment1]<='1499') AND	
(#[Segment2]='2000')))	

Saving Expressions

An Expression can be saved as a Property using the **Save** button of the **BizInsight Query** dialog.

BizInsight Query		
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Ó
Table	BizNet GL ×	
f_{x} Function	Which data set? GL Balances	
Data Validation		
∑ Expression ☐ Include required parameters?		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Fil	ter Reset Filters	
(-= ~ 1000	~) ~ AND ~ 🔣
(× Segment1 ×	<= ^v 1199	~) ~ AND ~
Save		OK Cancel Start Over

After clicking **Save**, you are prompted to provide a Name and Version (optional) for the Expression.

Add Filter Copy Fi	Iter Delete Filter Reset Filters
(Segment1	New BizProperty
(Segment 1	Property Name Cash
	Property Version BNE Property Value ((#[Segment1]>='1000') AND (#
	OK Cancel

Click **OK** when finished and the Expression is saved as a Property and is accessible from the Navigation Pane within the **BizProperties** menu.

BizProperties	٢
➤ Functions	
≥ Tables	
≥ MTDNET	
BNE	
Cash	

Once added as a property, it can be used across reports. For more information about creating and using Properties, see <u>BizInsight Properties</u>.

Data Cache Management

BizInsight uses data caching to improve report performance. When a BizInsight object (Function, Data Validation List or Table) is added to a worksheet or updated, BizInsight will check to see if the data is already cached in memory. If it is already cached, the object is updated immediately from that in-memory data cache. If the data is not already cached, BizInsight makes a call to the cloud-hosted or on premise ERP system to retrieve the requested data.

The amount of data retrieved is dictated by the BizInsight Connector design, or if data is stored in a Cloud based system, the API ("Application Programming Interface") provided by that Cloud system's provider. For most General Ledger data calls, but not all, BizInsight will return balances for the entire year specified. So, while the function itself may request a net balance amount for Account 1100 in Period 1 of 2016, the data that is retrieved from the ERP system is balances for all accounts in 2016. Any other object in the report that requests data for that year will be updated quickly from the cache instead of incurring the time to make a roundtrip to the ERP system. This approach makes a significant difference in report performance and reduces resource stress on the ERP system server. In the case of Cloud-hosted ERP systems, it may result in financial savings.

There are three types of cache utilized by BizInsight. All 3 types can be viewed using the **View Data** button on the BizInsight ribbon:

Service Data Cache – The Service Data Cache contains data that is retrieved by a BizInsight Connector. This data is retrieved by and stored in your local workstation's memory ("RAM"). BizInsight Connectors have been developed for many different ERP systems such as Intacct, Blackbaud, Sage 500, etc.; not all ERP systems have a BizInsight Connector available.



Excel Data Cache – The Excel Data Cache refers to data that resides in your Excel workbook and is loaded into Excel's memory using the **Select Data** button on the BizInsight ribbon. The data in the workbook could have come from simply copying and pasting a table of data into the workbook or may have been retrieved (and updated) by using Excel's Get External Data connection feature to connect to an external data source. For more information about Excel's Get External Data connection feature, see <u>Get External Data</u>.

Vie	ew Data					
	Excel Data					
Data	Type or Select the Excel Cao	the Name Financ	cials		•	
xcel		Company	FiscYear	FiscPer	FiscQTR	Ac
ш	Financials	SOA	2007	1	1	CO
ata		SOA	2007	1	1	CO
e D		SOA	2007	1	1	CO
Servic		SOA	2007	1	1	со
		SOA	2007	1	1	со
		504	2007	-	4	0

Serialized Data Cache- When Excel is closed, the Service Data Cache is stored to your local hard drive as serialized data. The data will be loaded back into memory and made available for use when the data is requested again. Whether the data is updated at that time depends on your <u>Data Cache Refresh</u> setting and that data set's Check for New Data selection.

GL Transaction Detail (1)							
	Name	GL Transaction Detail					
	Rows	16250					
	Cache Type	Serial					
	Created	12/19/2016 3:35:40 PM					
	Created For	Default_BizNet Sample Data					

Smart Data Cache Management

A IMPORTANT

Smart Data Cache management capabilities are only applicable to data sets retrieved by a BizInsight Connector and stored in the Service Data Cache. They do not apply to Excel data caches.

BizInsight checks the timestamp of the currently cached data against a user-defined refresh interval to determine whether it needs to be updated. If the data is older than the defined refresh interval, the service will update the data cache.

🛿 Cache Refresh	\times
Data older than 30 min(s) needs to be refreshed	
	-
OK Cance	1
GL Transaction Detail (1)	
Name CI Transaction Detail	

	Name	GL Transaction Detail
	Rows	16250
	Cache Type	Serial
	Created	12/19/2016 3:35:40 PM
	Created For	Default_BizNet Sample Data

When the Smart Data Engine determines that the cached data set needs to be updated, the method used to retrieve the updated data is dictated by the capabilities of the ERP system. If the ERP system provides a last modified timestamp on the records being retrieved <u>and</u> that field is accessible by BizInsight (for example, Intacct), the Smart Data Engine returns only the records that have been added to the ERP system since that data was last retrieved, the "delta". When a timestamp is not available for comparative purposes, the entire data cache is deleted and refreshed from the ERP system.

To see your data caches, click on the View Data button on the BizInsight ribbon.



The tabs on the left side of the dialog allow you to switch between viewing your Excel Data Cache or your Service Data Cache.

Vie	w Data
S	ervice Data
el Data	No Caches selected. Click on any Cache title or che
EXC	Accounts (1)
ce Data	Companies (1)
Servic	GL Balances (3)
$\mathbf{\nabla}$	

The **View Data** dialog defaults to displaying the **Service Data** tab when BizInsight detects that a Connector is installed.

On the Service Data tab, data caches are grouped by the data contained in the cache. To view details about the specific data caches within a group, click the dropdown arrow.

- 5	ier	vice	Data		Change Refresh Interval 🕙 Export All to CSV 🔄 Delete select
	Ν	lo Di	ata Caches seli	ected. Click on any Data Cache title to sele	ct. <u>Select All</u>
		Cor	mpanies (1)		3
		Yea	ar and Perio	ds (1)	3
		GL	Balances (2))	
			Name	GL Balances	Check for new Data: Yes
			Rows	1263	
			Cache Type	Serial	CompanyCode='BNE'
			Created	7/1/2016 6:21:00 AM	FiscalYear= 2015
			Created For	Default_BizNet GL	
			Name	GL Balances	Check for new Data: Yes
			Rows	1274	
			Cache Type	Serial	CompanyCode='BNE'
			Created	6/30/2016 4:49:54 PM	FiscalYear= 2014
			Created For	Default_BizNet GL	

On the left side, information is displayed for each data cache:

- how many rows it contains,
- where the cache was loaded from (Cache Type),
- when the cache was created, and
- which BizInsight Connector created it.

On the right side, the specific required parameters for which the cache was built are displayed.



Unless you need to address performance issues, this may be all you need to know about the View Data dialog. BizNet Software recommends running the system with default settings before making any adjustments to how the data cache is managed.

For more details on data cache management, see Adjusting Data Cache Management.

Right-click Menu Options

BizInsight provides additional data cache management right-click menu options for functions. The **How old is this data?** right-click option will return the age of the data cache used by the function.



To refresh the data cache for a specific formula, right-click on the cell and choose **Refresh** selected data NOW!

Calculate Formulas **BizInsight Drilldown** Þ How old is this data? Refresh selected data NOW! 1040055.251

When using the **Refresh selected data NOW** option, the following prompt will display after the data cache is refreshed. Choosing the recommended option ensures that all formulas are recalculated with the updated data set.

Suc	cess	\otimes
?	The selected data has been refreshed! What would you like to do with relevant formulas?	
	→ Let BizInsight refresh formulas (Recommended)	
	→ Refresh formulas manually	
	ОК	

Refreshing Reports

To refresh all <u>functions</u> in an existing report, right-click anywhere in the report and choose **Calculate Formulas**.



To refresh all <u>functions and tables</u> in an existing BizInsight report, click on the **Refresh Workbooks** button on the BizInsight ribbon tab.

File	BizInsight	7 In:	sert	Page Layout	Form	nulas	Data	Review	v Horr	ne Vi	ew Devel	oper Add-ins
Load BizInsight	BizNet Assistant	Select Data	<i>fx</i> ^{Query} Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	Design Mode Biz	View Data	Check for Errors	PackNGo	T Activate	€ Updates Ⅲ About	Configuration

When a refresh completes, the total time for the report to refresh will be displayed:

BizInsight	\otimes
Report elapsed time: 00 minutes 00 seconds. Number of Formulas: 1 Number of Errors: 0	
ОК	

Cell Referencing

Input parameters that are expected to change often (such as company, period or year) should be placed in cells in your worksheet and references to those cells used in the BizInsight functions. Using cell references for your parameters makes your BizInsight report more flexible and re-usable.

For example, instead of entering a hard value for the FiscalPeriod parameter, you could enter a cell reference for a cell on the report that contains a period. Then, to quickly change the report so that it retrieves data for another period, you simply change the period in the cell you referenced instead of having to change it for each function within the BizInsight Query dialog.
To add a cell reference as a parameter's value, click the grid button to the right of the parameter and then click in the cell on your Excel worksheet that contains the value you want to pass into this function.

Co	mpanyCode	v	=	~	BNE			×	
Fis	scalPeriod	v	=	Ŷ	'Sheet1	I'!\$B\$10		Y	7
Fis	scalYear	~	=	÷	2013				
Ac	count	~	>=	~	Sheet1	!\$A\$ 13		~	130
7 8									
7 8 9	Year				2013				
7 3 9 0	Year Period				2013 7				
7 9 1 0 11	Year Period Account			YT	2013 7 DNET				
7 3 9 1 2 3	Year Period Account 1309		-1	YT 0400	2013 7 DNET 033.23				
7 3 9 1 2 3 4	Year Period Account 1309		-1	YT 0400	2013 7 DNET 033.23				
1 2 3 4	Year Period Account 1309 Segment1		-1	YT 0400	2013 7 DNET 033.23				
,) 1 2 3 4 5 6	Year Period Account 1309 Segment1 1100', '1110', '1200'		-1	YT 0400	2013 7 DNET 033.23				

Note The Cell Selection box, while open, can be moved anywhere on the screen.

Cell Selecti	on	- ×
Excel Range	'Cell Anchoring'!\$B\$7 OK	

Anchoring

Another way to make your BizInsight report more powerful and flexible is to use Excel's cell anchoring. When a dollar sign "\$" is used in front of the column letter, row number or both in a cell reference, that part of the cell reference is anchored. When that cell's function/formula is copied to other cells on the report, any parts of the cell reference that are anchored are not changed to reflect the new cell reference where that function has been copied.

For example, suppose you want a report that provides the balances for a certain list of accounts, for a certain year and period like the following:

	А	В		С	D	
1						
2	Company	v (BNE			
3	Year		2013			
4						
5						
б	Segment	:1	7	8	9	>
6 7	Segment 1100	:1 314,59	7 8.17	8 300,213.47	9 284,390.29	>
6 7 8	Segment 1100 1110	:1 314,59 129,42	7 8.17 3.00	8 300,213.47 129,423.00	9 284,390.29 129,423.00	>
6 7 8 9	Segment 1100 1110 1200	:1 314,59 129,42 262,39	7 18.17 13.00 15.11	8 300,213.47 129,423.00 270,756.86	9 284,390.29 129,423.00 279,954.79	>
6 7 8 9 10	Segment 1100 1110 1200 1205	314,59 129,42 262,39 (3,93	7 8.17 3.00 5.11 6.50)	8 300,213.47 129,423.00 270,756.86 (4,061.91)	9 284,390.29 129,423.00 279,954.79 (4,199.86)	>

Using the above example layout, following are the different anchoring approaches:

Anchoring Type	Description	Example
Fully Anchored	Neither the column nor the row will change when the function is copied to other cells	The Company, Book and Year parameters are examples of parameters that should be fully anchored. =\$B\$2 =\$B\$3 =\$B\$4
Row Anchored	You want each function to always get its period from Row 4 of the appropriate column	The FiscalPeriod values in Row 6 above is an example of a parameter that should be row anchored: =B \$ 6
Column anchored	The row will change but not the column when the function is copied to other cells	The Segment1 values in Column A are an example of a parameter that should be row anchored: =\$A7



If anchoring while cell referencing, make certain your curser is in the text box before pressing F4 to anchor.

With proper anchoring, functions can be easily copied with a drag and drop to adjacent columns and rows and will update to reflect the correct row and column based on the cell referencing and anchoring used:

1				
2	Company	BNE		
3	Year	2013		
4				
5				
б	Segment1	7	8	9
7	1100	314,598.17		
8	1110	129,423.00		
9	1200	262,395.11		
10	1205	(3,936.50)		
11				

If you open the Formula Editor for one of the cells that was copied, you'll see that the nonanchored cell references changed appropriately and the anchored columns and rows did not change.

Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete Filter	Reset Filters	
CompanyCode	~ = ~	'Cell Anchoring'!\$B\$2	U BNE
FiscalYear	~ = ~	'Cell Anchoring'!\$B\$3	- 📃 2013
FiscalPeriod	~ = ~	'Cell Anchoring'!B\$6	~ 🔣 7
Segment1	~ = ~	'Cell Anchoring'!\$A7	~ 🔣 1100

📝 Note

If cell referencing is used to anchor cells, make certain the curser is in the Cell Selection text box before pressing F4.

Cell Selection	→ ×
Excel Local Range ^{'Cell Anchoring'!\$A7}	OK

Adjusting the Sign of Data

To change the sign of data returned by a BizInsight function, check the **Reverse sign** checkbox.

BizInsight Query		
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	What action would you like to take?
Table	BizNet Sample Data 🛛 🗸	Sum ~
$f_{\rm X}$ Function	Which data set?	What information would you like returned
	GL Balances	NetAmount
Data Validation		✓ Reverse sign
-		
2 Expression	and a final state	A market and and

=BizSuperFunc("BizNet Sample Data","GL Balances","Sum(NetAmount)","@CompanyCode|=" & ",@FiscalYear|=","BNE","2012")*-1



Do not place a minus sign between the equal sign "=" and the Superfunction name as this will disable the drilldown option for the function.

.,	Λ	B		c D	E	E I	G	ц	
1	A	DN	C-B	U D	¢ ov	- E			
2	Voor	201	Call			' ⊟			
2	Period	201	В		.00 →.0	*			
4	YTDNET	-105188	_						
5		100100	Ж	Cu <u>t</u>					
5			Ē	<u>С</u> ору					
7			Ê	Paste Options:					
3				會會					
9									
0				Paste <u>Special</u>					
1				Insert					
2				<u>D</u> elete					
3				Clear Co <u>n</u> tents					
4			Æ	Ouick Analysis	_				
5			-	Filter					
6									
/				S <u>o</u> rt	•				
8			Ĉ	Insert Co <u>m</u> ment					
9			8 0	<u>F</u> ormat Cells	-				
1				Pic <u>k</u> From Drop-down	List				
2				Define Name	-				
3	Drilldov	vn	æ	Lunavlink	-				
4	is		3	Hypenink					
5	missin	a 🦯		Save Property					
				Calculate Formulas					

BizInsight Properties

BizInsight comes with two built-in functions that can be used to store and retrieve frequently used values for easy reference across workbooks.



BizProperties currently only work when a Connector is installed.

Values can be stored using the **SetBizProperty7** function and retrieved into a worksheet using the **GetBizProperty7** function. These two functions can be found in the BizProperties section of the Navigation Pane:

E	BizProperties	۲
И	Functions	
	f ∗ GetBizProperty7	
	f ∗ SetBizProperty7	
И	Tables	

A property's value is stored as a string type and is ideal for storing lists of accounts but can also be used to store any kind of data including budget amounts. When a value is committed using SetBizProperty7, the value is stored in BizInsight's MetaData database.



Properties are not currently shared across computers. Users who work with reports that contain Properties must create those Properties on their workstations. BizNet recommends storing Properties in a single workbook that all users can access and refresh to ensure they have the latest definitions.

Property Elements

A Property has 3 fields:

Field Name	Purpose					
Property Name	Assign a name	to the property that describes its purpose.				
	Properties are great for department or location rollups. For example:					
	PropertyName PropertyValue					
	All Regions	[(Segment2 IN ('00', '10', '20', '30', '40'))]				
	Corp	[(Segment2 = '00')]				
	Region A	[(Segment2 IN ('10', '30'))]				
	Region B	[(Segment2 IN ('20', '40'))]				
Property Version	Assigning a ver Properties. The properties toget Pane.	sion to a Property allows you to categorize your Property Version can be used to group related her both logically and visually in the Navigation				
	BizProperties	Θ				
	∑ Functions					
	∖ Tables					
	≥ <mark>Examples</mark>					
	∖ <mark>Rollup</mark>					
	写 Corp					
	寻 West					
	寻 All Regions					
	👼 Region B					
	💷 East					
	寻 Region A					
	寻 Central					
	➢ ReportHeaders					
	Another exampl have two differe be organized by	le where Property Version can be helpful is if you ent charts of account to represent. The charts can / company.				

Creating Properties

The **BizInsight Query** dialog allows you to create Expressions, which are basically representations of account definitions. A Property is the way you can store those account definitions for easy re-use.

To save a Property using the **BizInsight Query** dialog, create your Expression and then click the **Save** button:

BizInsight Query		* X
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Ó
Table	BizNet Sample Data Y	
£ Eurotion	Which data set?	
JX railean	GL Balances	
🚃 Data Validation		
Expression		
Include required parameters?		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Fi	ter Reset Filters	
(Segment 1	= 1000	×) - AND - 🛄
	.= . [1133	
	Example expression	
Save		OK Cancel Start Over

The **Save** button is only present when a Connector is installed. If the workstation only has BizInsight 7 installed, this button is not present.

You will be prompted to supply a **Property Name** (required) and **Property Version** (optional).

New BizProper	ty 🛞
Property Name	From fx Query Dialog
Property Version	Examples
Property Value	((#[Segment1]>='1000') AND (#
ОК	Cancel

Click **OK** when you are finished and the Property will be added to the Navigation Pane in the BizProperties menu:



Notice that the Property is located under its Property Version in the Navigation Pane.

Retrieving Properties

Once a Property has been created, use the **GetBizProperty7** function to retrieve it.

1. Left-click on the Properties menu, expand Functions then drag and drop the GetBizProperty7 function.



2. Type in a PropertyName and, if applicable, a PropertyVersion. Or, best practice, point to cells containing those values.

	Α	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J
1										
2	Region A	Rollup								
3										
4			Function Argu	ments					?	×
5	2,\$B\$2)		-CotRizBroport	h.7						
б			GetBizProper	wr						
7			PropertyNa	ame \$A\$2			F	Region A"		
8			PropertyVers	ion \$B\$2	Rollup"					
9							= ""			
10			No help availa	ble.						
11				Pro	opertyName					
12										
13										
14			Formula result	=						
15										
16			Help on this fu	inction				OK	<	Cancel
17										



Do not use GetBizProperty7 inside a BizInsight function. It should be used in a separate cell and the BizInsight function parameter should point to that cell for its value.

In addition to the individual nodes for the properties, there are analysis sets provided in the Properties menu that will drop the properties as analysis set objects.

My Favorites	Θŗ						
BizNet GL							
BizProperties	۲						
> Functions							
`> Tables							
All Properties By Ve	rsion						
⊞ All Properties							
N No Version							

The advantage to using the pre-built Tables is they will refresh when a report is refreshed and any new properties that match the criteria specified for the analysis set will be automatically retrieved. There are two different analysis sets:

1. All Properties By Version

When dragged and dropped, this analysis set will prompt for a Property Version and return all Properties with that specific version.

		All Pro PropertyVe	perties with ersion="Rollup"
	A		
1	Broportublomo	Droport Marcion	anothé (alua
2	Propertyname	Propertyversion	Toherchange
3	All Regions	Rollup 🥖	[(Segment2 IN ('00', '10', '20', '30', '40'))]
4	Central	Rollup	[(Segment2 = '30')]
5	Corp	Rollup	[(Segment2 = '00')]
6	East	Rollup	[(Segment2 = '10')]
7	Region A	Rollup	[(Segment2 IN ('10', '30'))]
8	Region B	Rollup	[(Segment2 IN ('20', '40'))]
9	West	Rollup	[(Segment2 = 20)]
10			
11			

2. All Properties

This analysis will return all existing Account Definitions

	A	В	С
1			
2	PropertyName	PropertyVersion	PropertyValue
3	1	ReportHeader	For The One Month Ended
4	10	ReportHeader	For The Ten Months Ended
5	11	ReportHeader	For The Eleven Months Ended
6	12	ReportHeader	For The Twelve Months Ended
7	2	ReportHeader	For The Two Months Ended
8	3	ReportHeader	For The Three Months Ended
9	4	ReportHeader	For The Four Months Ended
10	5	ReportHeader	For The Five Months Ended
11	6	ReportHeader	For The Six Months Ended
12	7	ReportHeader	For The Seven Months Ended
13	8	ReportHeader	For The Eight Months Ended
14	9	ReportHeader	For The Nine Months Ended
15	All Regions	Rollup	[(Segment2 IN ('00', '10', '20', '30', '40'))]
16	Central	Rollup	[(Segment2 = '30')]
17	Corp	Rollup	[(Segment2 = '00')]
18	East	Rollup	[(Segment2 = '10')]
19	Region A	Rollup	[(Segment2 IN ('10', '30'))]
20	Region B	Rollup	[(Segment2 IN ('20', '40'))]
21	West	Rollup	[(Segment2 = 20)]
22			

Property Known Issues

- Excel's 256-character limitation on cell contents applies and will affect BizInsight drill-down. Use the =LEN() function on the cell to count the total character length and make sure it does not exceed Excel's limit.
- 2. It is not possible to nest two GetBizProperty7 functions then drill-down. The second nested function needs to be a cell reference as a workaround. Ex: (=GetBizProperty7(A1)+A2)
- 3. When using GetBizProperty7, Excel will strip leading zeros from property values. To work around this issue, use the **fx Query Data** dialog to build a full expression for the property. See <u>Creating Expressions</u> for instructions.

	A	В	С	D	E	
1						
2						
3						
4		Property Name	Property Value	GetBizProperty		
5		Cash1	0100	100		
б		Cash2	((#[Segment1]='0100'))	((#[Segment1]='0100'))		
7						
8						
9						

Wildcard Characters

A special feature of BizInsight is the ability to use a wildcard character. A wildcard character is a special symbol that stands for one or more characters. For example, a wildcard character can be used when defining a segment value to reference a group of segment values rather than a single segment value. BizInsight functions recognize one wildcard character: The asterisk (*) wildcard.

The asterisk (*) symbol represents zero or more characters in a string of characters. For example, if you wanted balances for all accounts that begin with a "100", you can use "100*" as the parameter value. For performance reasons, it is not recommended to pass only a wildcard as a function parameter; parameters for which a filter is not needed should be left blank.

The following illustrates a simple trial balance that can be accomplished using the wildcard character:

	А	В	BizInsight Query	
1	Company	BNE	What would you like to create? Where is your data?	What action would you
2	Year Poolod	2013	where is your data?	what action would you k
3	Period	12	Table BizNet Sample Data *	Sum ~
4	Account Begins With		Which data set?	What information would
6	1*	\$ 106,431,43	Jx Function GL Balances	NetAmount
7	2*	18,271,42		1
8	3*	-	Data Validation	🗌 Reverse sign 🛛 🔍
9	4*	(382,501.94)		
10	5*	269,213.32	T	5
11	6*	-	2 Expression	
12	7*	-		
13	8*	(11,414.23)		
14	9*	-	Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters	2
15		\$ 0.00		
16			CompanyCode	V R BNE
17			Final Ware y Grant Utato	2012
18			Fiscalitear = Sheetii\$6\$2	2013
19			FiscalPeriod	- 📃 12
20				
21			Segment1 × LIKE × Sheeti!\$A6	× 🖳 1*
22				
23				1
24				
25				- man
	-		the second of th	and the second

Lists and Ranges

It is possible to retrieve data for a non-contiguous list of values or a range of values with BizInsight. Typically lists and ranges are used for accounts or account segments but can also be used for other parameters.

List - A collection of discrete values that may not be serially next to each other. An example list might be 1100, 1205 and 1350. **Range** - Two values for which you want to retrieve data for every value in between those two values. An example range would be accounts 1100 through 1205.

How to retrieve data for lists and ranges is described below.

<u>Lists</u>

When supplying a list of non-contiguous values to a function, there are three possible approaches:

• Use the **IN** operator and select the individual values from the Available Values drop down.

🖊 Note

Not all segments will have available values. BizInsight reflects the available values based on what is in your ERP system.

	А	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	I.	J	К	L	
1	Company	BNE											
2	Year	2013											
3	Period	12											
4													
5					Amount								
6	Seg1Value				(7,167.95)								
7	BizInsight Qu	ery										- ×	
9 10	What would yo	u like to cr	eate? -	v	/here is your	data?		Wha	What action would you like to take?				
11	Table	Table				BizNet Sample Data V Sum V							
12	f. Eurotion	v	/hich data set	?		Wha	it informatio	on would yo	ou like retu	rned			
14	JX Function				GL Balances		Ŷ	Net	Amount			~	
15	Data Valid	ation						_					
16		ation						F	Reverse sign				
17													
18	Expression	ı											
19													
20						_							
21	Add Filter Co	py Filter	Del	ete Filter	Reset Filter	rs							
22									3				
24	CompanyCode		~ =	~	'Available Val	ues' !\$ B \$ 1		×	BNE				
25 26	FiscalYear		~ =	v	'Available Val	ues'!\$B\$2		- 🛄	2013				
27	FiscalPeriod		~ =	v	'Available Val	ues' !\$ B \$ 3		-	12				
28	Segment1		≚ IN	~	Select All			_ [
30					990			^					
31					1100								
32		1110							-				
33					1200								
34	L				1200			-					
36	Save				1309				ок	Cano	el Sta	rt Over	
37				l				\rightarrow					



• Enter the values in individual cells and select those cells for the parameter.

• Create an expression and use the expression parameter. See Expressions for information on creating an expression.

1	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	K h
1	Company	BNE									
2	Year	2013									
3	Period	12									1
4											
5					Amount						1
6	Seg1Value	((#[Segme	nt1]IN ('1	100','1200')))	(7,167.95)						
7			1								
8	BizInsight Qu	iery									- × X
10	What would yo	ou like to cr	eat ?	Whore is	wour data?		,	What action	would you	like to take	,
11	· · · · ·			where is	your data:			c.	noulu you	ince to take	· •
12	Table			BizNet S	ample Data	`	Ŷ	sum	Ŭ		
13	£. Eurotion			Which da	ta set?		``	What inform	ation woul	d you like r	eturned 🌛
14	Jx Function			GL Balan	ices		~	NetAmount			~
15											<u>ک</u>
16	🤤 Data Vali	dation					[Reverse s	ign		
17											
18	5	_									<u> </u>
19	Z Expressio	n									5
20											>
21											5
22	Add Filter C	opy Filter	Pelete	Filter Reset	Filters						
24	CompanyCode		× =	۲ 'Express	sion'!\$B\$1		×	🔍 BNE			Real Provide August 1997
26	FiscalYear		~ =	~ Express	ion!\$B\$2		~	2013			Å
27	FiscalPeriod		-	~ Express	ion!\$B\$3		v	12			2
29 30	Expression		~ =	 Express 	ion!\$B\$6		¥	🖳 ((#[Seg	jment1]IN	('1100','1200	'W)
31											
32											
33	L	× -			<u> </u>		M			A	
		· · · · ·	~~~~				www.			V	

Ranges

To retrieve data for a range of accounts, use the >= and <= operators.

Add Filter Copy Filte	Delete F	ilter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode	~ =	BNE	~
FiscalYear	~ =	~ 2013	~
FiscalPeriod	~ =	~ 3	~ 🖳
Segment1	~ >=	~ 1100	- 🖳
Segment1	~=	~ 1200	- 🖳

As with lists, the parameter values can be placed in cells and referenced instead of being hard-coded in the function:

Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete Filter	Reset Filters	
CompanyCode ~	= ~	'Sheet1'!\$8\$4	U 🔣 BNE
FiscalYear ~	= ~	'Sheet1'!\$B\$5	- 📃 2013
FiscalPeriod ~	= ~	'Sheet1'!\$8\$6	- 📃 1
Segment1 ~	>= ~	'Sheet1'! \$A\$ 11	- 📃 1100
Segment1 ~	<= ~	'Sheet1'! \$A\$ 12	- 📃 2400

Drilldown

BizInsight provides the ability to drilldown to view the records that comprise the amount being returned by the function in three different layouts as well as drilldown to transaction detail.

To drilldown on a function, right-click the function, select **BizInsight DrillDown** and select the desired drilldown target: Table, Pivot Table, SuperTable or Transaction Detail.



The **Table** option will return the data in a simple table layout:

		A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J	К	5
/	1	Account	AccountD	AccountG	AccountG	AccountK	Beginning	Company	Companyl	CreditAm	DebitAmo	EndingBal	Fiscale
	2	130910000	Due from	1	Assets	335	16323.79	BNE	BizNet Enf	0	992.71	17316.5	- 2
	3	180900000	Investmer	1	Assets	340	569114.3	BNE	BizNet Enf	0	11414.23	580528.5	
	4	111000000	Money Ma	1	Assets	2	129423	BNE	BizNet Enf	0	0	129423	5
	5	160000000	Money Ma	1	Assets	15	0	BNE	BizNet Enf	0	0	0	- 6
	б	110010000	Cash-Cheo	1	Assets	42	212618.2	BNE	BizNet Enf	-2.4E+07	23735971	194480.3	
	7	120010000	Account R	1	Assets	43	150712	BNE	BizNet Enf	-1747855	1752952	155808.8	
	8	120510000	Allow, for	1	Assets	44	-2408.97	BNE	BizNet Enf	-479.84	398.67	-2490.14	
	9	131010000	Inventory	1	Assets	46	2148547	BNE	BizNet Ent	-9741907	9861910	2268551	. 🎿
-	Μ	-000	dina a second		Assets	And State	1,209.47	wir 🗸	RizNet	∖. 77 €3,	Jones,	and the second second	

Row Labels 💌 Sum of NetAmount BNE 106431.43 **=1100** -17119.3 **2013** -17119.3 -17119.3 12 **=1110** 0 ≡2013 0 12 0 ∃1200 9951.35 013

The **Pivot Table** option will return the data in an Excel pivot table.

Additional rows, columns and values can be selected for display in the Pivot Table drilldown. To do this, click inside the pivot table to open the Pivot Table Field List.

To add a field to a row, column or the values section, select the field from the top pane and drag it into the appropriate lower quadrant of the Pivot Table Field List.

>		А	В	
1	1			Pivot i able Fields
	2			Choose fields to add to report:
	3			
	4			Account
	5	Row Labels 💌	Sum of NetAmount	AccountDesc
	б	BNE	106431.43	AccountGroup
	7	≡1100	-17119.3	AccountGroupDesc
	8	= 2013	-17119.3	AccountKey Click and Drag
	9	12	-17119.3	📖 🔲 BeginningBalance
	10	=1110	0	✓ CompanyCode
t7	11	=2013	Ō	CompanyName
gh	12	12	0	🗌 🗆 CreditAmount
lsi	13	≡1200	9951.35	Drag fields between greas below:
zlı	14	=2013	9951.35	Diag lielus between aleas below.
Bi	15	12	9951.35	T FILTERS
	16	=1205	-149.25	
	17	= 2013	-149.25	
	18	12	-149.25	
	19	= 1309	992.71	≡ ROWS Σ VALUES
	20	= 2013	992.71	CompanyCode 💌 📥 Sum of NetAmount 💌
	21	12	992.71	Segment1
	22	=1310	108452.05	, <u> </u>
	23	2013	108452.05	
		< • • •	🕂 :	

MPORTANT

PivotTable drilldowns will not refresh/update when a BizInsight report is refreshed.

										_		
x 🔒 🕤 -	⊘∓		XI.	Connect	Sample	Repo	artadsa - Excel				TABLE TOOLS	
FILE HON	ME INSERT	PAGE LAYOUT	FO	RMULAS	S DA	ATA.	REVIEW	VIEW	XL Conne	ct	DESIGN	
Table Name:	🗊 Summarize	with PivotTable			P.	:: F	Properties	V	Header Row	🗌 F	irst Column	Filter Butto
GL_Balance_Mas	Remove Du	plicates	-T-	Europet	LC Pafrach	6	Open in Browser		Total Row	Πι	.ast Column	
💮 Resize Table	📇 Convert to F	Range	Slicer	export *	*	çŏ (Unlink	\checkmark	Banded Rows	08	landed Columns	
Properties		Tools			Extern	al Tab	ole Data			Tabl	ie Style Options	

The **SuperTable** option will return the data in an Excel table format.

	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	\square
1	Account 💌	AccountDesc 💌	AccountGroup 💌	Account Group Desc 💌	AccountKey 💌	BeginningBalance 💌	CompanyCode 💌	6
2	1.309E+10	Due from BNC	1	Assets	335	16323.79	BNE	Ъ,
З	1.809E+10	Investment in B	1	Assets	340	569114.3	BNE	Βĸ,
4	1.11E+10	Money Market (1	Assets	2	129423	BNE	Bi
5	1.6E+10	Money Market (1	Assets	15	0	BNE	₹
6	1.1E+10	Cash-Checking-I	1	Assets	42	212618.2	BNE ,	2
L.7	Contraction of the second seco	Ceiv	And the second s	Sector Se	43		North Contraction	

When drilling down on a function, the drilldown data will be placed in a new Excel worksheet named "DrillDown (n)", "PivotTable(n)" or "SuperTable(n)" depending on which drilldown target was selected.

Trial Balance	DrillDown1	Super	Table1	PivotTable	1 Pivot	tTable2
						í l

🕺 Note

Any adjustments to the sign of the data displayed by the function (ex. *-1) will not be reflected in the Drilldown.

Drilldown to transaction detail is restricted to viewing the transaction detail for a specific period. For some ERPs drilldown to transaction detail for multiple periods on a YTD function is available but in these cases, there is usually an additional requirement that the data be filtered on the natural account parameter (Segment1 or MainAccountCode) to reduce the amount of data being retrieved. This restriction is to ensure optimal performance for users. As an example, a YTD function may have the following drilldown options:



Notice the by 'Segment 1' on the transaction detail entry. This means that this drilldown is available only for a single natural account segment value or a list of natural account segment values.



The 'By' drilldown option will not work if a range of account values, wildcards or a complex expression is used for the natural account segment. The follow error will occur using a 'By' drilldown option with a range or complete expression for the natural account segment:

	A	В	С	D	E
1	Object ref	erence not	t set to an	instance of	f an object.
2					
3					
4					
5					
6					
_					
	 Image: Image: Im	Sheet1	DrillDo	own(1)	(+) :

Dynamic Tables

When a list/table is dragged and dropped into a worksheet, the filter parameters used for that object are static. If you would like the table to dynamically update with new data based on parameters that you are changing, select the **Make Dynamic** checkbox in the **BizInsight Query** dialog. The BizInsight Query dialog can be accessed using the **fx Query Data** button on the ribbon or will open automatically when a table is dragged and dropped from the Navigation Pane.

BizInsight Query	- ×
Create a Table Return my results as a: Table Remove Duplicates Make Dynamic	¢
FiscalYear · = · · ·	
FiscalPeriod	



When a Table is dragged and dropped from the Navigation Pane, the BizInsight Query dialog will open in the simplified view. Use the Advanced button to access additional options.

Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters	
CompanyCode v IN v	\sim \square \sim
Save	OK Cancel Start Over Advanced

In the below example, a Table retrieving balances for a range of Segment1 values is being added to a workbook with the Make Dynamic option selected.

🔨 IMPORTANT

Be sure to cell reference each one of your parameters so that the expression created is not hard coded.

			BizInsight Query Simplified view
A 1 Company 2 Year 3 Period 4 Seg1Value 5 6	BNE 2013 1 1100	C 2400	Create a Table Return my results as a: Remove Duplicates Make Dynamic
7 8 9 10			Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters CompanyCode - - - -
11 12			FiscalYear
13 14 15			FiscalPeriod v = v Sheet5'!\$B\$3 v 1 Cogment1 v v v 1100
16 17			Segment1 <th< th=""> <th< th=""> <</th<></th<>
18 19			Segment3 =

Notice the expression that has been added above the table. If any of the filter parameters are changed and the Table is refreshed, the Table will update to reflect the new data.

="(@CompanyCode=	'''&Sheet5!\$	B\$1&''' @F	iscalYear=	"&Sheet5	\$B\$2&''' (#[FiscalPer	iod]='''&Sł	neet5!\$B\$3	&"'' AND #[Segment1]>='''&
Sh	eet5!\$B\$4&''' AND) #[Segment	1]<='''&She	et5!\$C\$48	.)"							4
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J	К	L
1	Company	BNE										1
2	Year	2013										
3	Period	1										
4	Seg1Value	1100	2400									
5												
6												
7	@CompanyCode	=' <mark>BNE'</mark> @Fis	calYear='20	013' (#[Fis	calPeriod]=	='1' AND #[Segment1]	≻='1100' A	ND #[Segm	ient1]<='24	00')	
8												
9	CompanyCode	Segment1	Segment2	Segment3	Account	AccountD	Companyl	AccountG	AccountG	FiscalYear	FiscalPeri	Beginning
10	BNE	1309	1000	000	130910000	Due from	BizNet Enf	1	Assets	2013	1	7138.59
11	BNE	1809	0000	000	180900000	Investmer	BizNet Enf	1	Assets	2013	1	456078.9
12	BNE	1110	0000	000	111000000	Money Ma	BizNet Enf	1	Assets	2013	1	129423
13	BNE	1~00	0000	<u></u>	160000000	M-ver-va	BizNet Enf	1	Assets	2013	1	
-				~	-	~ ~	harris		~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~~~		~~~~

Removing Extra Columns

In the event, the columns displayed in a table need to be changed after it has been added to a report, right-click anywhere in the table and choose **BizInsight Table Options** > **Table Parameters**.

mve	*7	Insert Comn	nent		540	493093.2	DIVE
Inve					340	505662.1	BNE
Inve	e- 0-	<u>F</u> ormat Cells	5		340	515675.1	BNE
Inve	5	<u>E</u> dit Query			340	525788.3	BNE
Inve	e- 0-	D <u>a</u> ta Range	Properties		340	536306	BNE
Inve	-	Parameters.			340	546956.3	BNE
Inve	-191 D	D . f			340	558032.5	BNE
Inve	19	Kerresn			340	569114.3	BNE
Mon		BizInsight Ta	able Options	•	R	efresh Table	
Mon	ey M	1	Assets		T T	able Parame	ters
Mon	ey M	1	Assets		E	dit Ouerv	
Mon	ey M	1	Assets		13	0	DIVL

Click on **Columns** in the left pane and then click on the grid icon next to the current column names.

BizInsight Parameters	~ ×
Parameters	How parameter value is obtained
DataSourceID TableName Expression	Use the following value Account, AccountDesc, AccountGroup, Account
Columns	
RemoveDups	Get the value from the following cell
	OK Cancel

The **Select Columns** dialog will open and columns can be added or removed as needed. Use the up/down arrows to sort the columns alphabetically and left-click and drag columns to move them.

		<u>^</u>		
	CompanyCode			
	Segment1			
	Segment2			
	Segment3			
-	Account			
-	AccountDesc			
	CompanyName			
	AccountGroup			
	AccountGroupDe	ISC		
	∃ FiscalYear			
	□ FISCalPeriod			
	⊐ beginningBalanci ∃ DobitAmount	e		
	NetAmount			
		~		
	OK Cancel		с	D
1	OK Cancel	BNE	с	D
1 2	OK Cancel A Company Year	BNE 2013	C	D
1 2 3	OK Cancel A Company Year Period	BNE 2013 1	C	D
1 2 3 4	OK Cancel A Company Year Period Seg1Value	BNE 2013 1 1100	C 2400	D
1 2 3 4 5	OK Cancel A Company Year Period Seg1Value	BNE 2013 1 1100	C 2400	D
1 2 3 4 5 6	Cancel A Company Year Period Seg1Value	BNE 2013 1 1100	C 2400	D
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	A Company Year Period Seg1Value @CompanyCode=	BNE 2013 1 1100 ="BNE' @FiscalYear='2013' (#[FiscalPeriod]	C 2400	D
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	A Company Year Period Seg1Value @CompanyCode=	BNE 2013 1 1100 ='BNE' @FiscalYear='2013' (#[FiscalPeriod]	C 2400 ='1' AND #[S	D
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	A Company Year Period Seg1Value @CompanyCode= Account	B BNE 2013 1 1100 ='BNE' @FiscalYear='2013' (#[FiscalPeriod]	C 2400 ='1' AND #[S NetAmoun	D egme t
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	A Company Year Period Seg1Value @CompanyCode= Account 13091000000	B BNE 2013 1 1100 = BNE' @FiscalYear='2013' (#[FiscalPeriod]	C 2400 ='1' AND #[S NetAmoun 717.16	D egme t
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A Company Year Period Seg1Value @CompanyCode= Account 13091000000 1809000000	B BNE 2013 1 1100 ==BNE' @FiscalYear='2013' (#[FiscalPeriod] AccountDesc Due from BNC Investment in BNC	C 2400 ='1' AND #[S NetAmoun 717.16 8887	D egme t

Design Mode

Working in Design Mode refers to working without a connection to the caching service. When BizInsight is in Design Mode, all functions will display #DESIGN#.

Design Mode can be enabled by selecting the **Design Mode** button on the BizInsight ribbon.



When BizInsight is in Design Mode, the **Design Mode** button will be highlighted as shown below:

File	BizInsight	7 In:	sert	Page Layou	t Form	nulas	Data	Reviev	v Horr	ne Vi	iew	Develop	per Add-in	
Load BizInsighti	BizNet Assistant	Select Data	<i>fx</i> Query Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	Design Mode Biz	View Data	Check for Errors	PackNGo	T Activate	U 🚱 A 📖	pdates bout	Configuration	1

The primary purpose for Design Mode is to allow you to work with your report design without being interrupted by data retrieval calls back to the ERP system database. If you add an object to your report design for which data has not already been cached, the function will return the #DESIGN or #VALUE message. To go back online, click on the **Design Mode** button again so that it is no longer highlighted and then choose **Calculate Formulas**. To retrieve the latest data from the ERP system database, right-click a function that uses the dataset you want to refresh and choose **Refresh selected data NOW!**

PackNGo

File	BizInsight	7 In	sert	Page Layou	t Forn	nulas	Data	Review	/ Hom	ne Vi	ew Devel	oper Add-ins
Load BizInsight	BizNet Assistant	Select Data	∫x Query Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	Design Mode Biz	View Data	Check for Errors	PackNGo	T Activate	€ Updates Ⅲ About	Configuration

PackNGo can be used to package a BizInsight report for distribution to individuals who do not have connectivity to the ERP system. With BizInsight 7 (without a Connector) installed, these individuals can freely change functions, refresh tables, and drilldown but are limited to the embedded data caches only.



The user producing the PackNGo report must have BizInsight 7 with a Connector installed. The PackNGo option does not display on the BizInsight 7 ribbon when BizInsight 7 is the only product installed.

To use the PackNGo feature, do the following:

1. Create the report you would like to distribute. Ensure that all data sets you may want the recipient to have access to are included in the report.

	A	В		С	D	E
1	BNE					
2	2013					
3	1					
4						
5						
б		MTD		YTD		
7	1309	717.1	6	14,994.34		
8	1809	8,887.0	0	921,044.82		
9	5050	30,074.0	0	30,074.00		
10	5500	6,910.0	0	6,910.00		
11	5650	999.0	0	999.00		
12	5100	5,155.0	0	5,155.00		
13	5225	3,024.0	0	3,024.00		
14	5240	1.237.0	0	1.237.00		
	<	Basic	T	ransactions	(+)	



Users must explicitly reference the parameter value with a SuperFunction or Table, within the workbook, or else the cache does not transfer.

2. Click on the **PackNGo** button on the BizInsight ribbon.



If other workbooks are open, the following message will display. Click **OK** and close all other open workbooks and then click on the PackNGo button again.



3. If the workbook has not been saved the following message will appear. Click **Yes** to save.

🔊 BizInsight				
?	You have made changes to the data. Would you like to save the workbook?			
	Yes No]		

4. The PackNGo dialog will open.

🐼 Packi	NGo	×
Location	C:\Users\bizuser\Documents	Browse
PackNGo	workbook name:	
PGo_We	ekly Report.xlsx	
		Continue Cancel

For the Location field, enter the path to which you would like to save the PackNGo output file.

In the next field, accept the default name or provide a custom name of your choice. Click **Continue**.

5. The Distribution Menu dialog will open when the packing process is complete and provides several distribution options.



Email Document as attachment: This option will create an email with a default subject and the workbook attached. Any BizInsight user can open this PackNGo workbook.Non-BizInsight users need to follow the steps that are provided in the email to download and install BizInsight 7.

E 🗄 5 0	↑ ↓ =	Biz	Insight PackNGo Workbog			
FILE MESSAGE	INSERT OPTIONS FORMAT TEXT	REVIEW	1			
Paste Vice State Vice State	Calibri (Boc * 11 * A* A*) E B I U av A * E E E E	Address Check Book Names	Attach Attach Signature File Item •			
Clipboard	ra Basic Text	🖼 Names	Include 🤾			
Send To Send Subject Attached	BizInsight PackNGo Workbook - PGo_Weekly Repo	ort.xlsx				
Someone has shared a	Someone has shared a BizInsight PackNGo workbook with you! To view this workbook, please follow these instructions: 1. Open Excel and Load BizInsight. If you do not have BizInsight installed, you can <u>Download it here!</u>					
2. Save the attached P	ckives workbook on your machine.					
3. Open the workbook :	and follow the prompt instructions.		5			

The following dialog will appear when the recipient opens the attached Pack-N-Go workbook.

Click Yes

🛿 Biz Insight	\times
😰 Would you like to load PackNGo data?	
We have found PackNGo data embedded in the workbook	
	es No

Click **Yes** when prompted to refresh tables and Functions.

🐼 Biz Insight	×
Would you like to refresh any form PackNGo loaded data?	nulas or tables affected by
	Yes No

Email Link with Document Location: An email will open with a default subject and instructions for accessing the PackNGo workbook. Any BizInsight user can click the link to download the workbook, (Step 2), after they have loaded BizInsight. Non-BizInsight users need to follow the steps that are provided in the email to download and install BizInsight 7.

🛕 IMPORTANT

When using this option, be sure to save the PackNGo workbook to a directory the recipients can access.

🐼 PackN	Go	~
Location	\\SERVER2012-LD\Reports	Browse
PackNGo	workbook name:	C 1
PGo_Wee	kly Report.xlsx	
A		

Upload to Dropbox: Users must have a Dropbox account to use this functionality. You can authenticate your Dropbox account via a Microsoft Outlook account or a Gmail account.



Browse to the file location in Dropbox or, if left blank, it will upload to the root folder. Then click **Upload**.

ntering to Dropbox 🖉		×
Review before uploading		
Upload location:	\bigcirc	
Leave blank to upload to root folder		
	-	
\blacksquare Create and provide a link to the file		
Upload		

If you check the '*Create and provide a link to the file*' box you will receive the following conformation:

Choose **Yes** to create a link from your PackNGo workbook to your Dropbox account.

🐼 P	lease confirm		\times
?) By choosing to create a link, anyone the file	with the link can view	
	Would you like to continue?		
$\sim -$	ihow details	Yes No]

A dialog box will appear indicating the PackNGo workbook was uploaded to Dropbox successfully.

🛿 Upload to Dropbox	×
Success!	
Upload Completed!	
Close	

In addition, an Outlook email will be auto-created for you to address and send to the intended recipient(s). The email contents instruct the recipients on how to download the PackNGo workbook.

F	5 े	↑ Ψ ∓	BizInsig	ht PackNGo Workbo	ook - PGo_Book1.xlsx - Message (HTML)	?	Ť	_	×
FILE	MESSAGE	INSERT	OPTIONS	FORMAT TEXT	REVIEW				
-	То								
Sand	Cc								
Senu	Subject	BizInsight Pac	kNGo Workbool	- PGo_Book1.xlsx					
Someone	e has shared a	a BizInsight Pack	NGo workbook w	ith you! To view this	workbook, please follow these instructions:				
1. Open l	Excel and Loa	d BizInsight. If yo	ou do not have Bi	zinsight installed, you	u can <u>Download it here!</u>				
2. Click o	on this <u>link</u> to a	download the Pa	ckNGo workbook	-					
3. Open 1	the workbook	and follow the p	orompt instructio	ns.					

Show in Folder: A Windows Explorer window will open, navigated to the directory to which the PackNGo workbook was saved.



Save to a Different Location: This option allows you to browse to a location of your choice and save your workbook.

🚺 Save As			×
← → • ↑ 📮	Network > server2012-Id > reports	✓ O Search reports	Ą
Organize 🔻 Ne	w folder		::: - ?
📌 Quick access	▲ Name	Date modified	Туре
📃 Desktop	* No items mat	tch your search.	
👆 Downloads	*		
🔮 Documents	* v <		>
File name:	PGo_Weekly Report.xlsx		~
Save as type:	All files (*.*)		~
∧ Hide Folders		Save	Cancel

Click OK

🐼 Biz Insight	×
PackNGo file has been saved to: \\server2012- Id\reports\PGo_Weekly Report.xlsx	
	ОК

Take Action Later: Closes the Distribution menu. To re-display the Distribution menu, click the PackNGo button again to repack the workbook.

File	BizInsight	7 In:	sert	Page Layou	t Forn	nulas	Data	Review	/ Hom	ne Vi	ew Devel	oper Add-ins
Load BizInsight7	BizNet Assistant	Select Data	fx Query Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	Design Mode Biz	View Data	Check for Errors	PackNGo	T Activate	€ Updates Ⅲ About	Configuration

📝 Note

BizBroadcast has been updated to support the PackNGo feature.

PackNGo and BizBroadcast

A PackNGo workbook contains data that has been requested by the Functions and Tables in the workbook. It is common for a report design to use data validation lists of valid values. PackNGo will not include data for parameter values in these data validation lists unless that value is referenced by a Function or Table in the workbook. Therefore, users will have to ensure that every variation of the data is referenced by a Function or Table object in the workbook. A quick method for accomplishing this is to create a new worksheet in the workbook, create a Function for every parameter value, and hide the worksheet.

The BizBroadcast Tabbed Parameter capability provides another method for ensuring all variations of parameter values are represented in a PackNGo workbook. For example, in the situation where a user desires to send data for several Fiscal Years, the BizBroadcast Tabbed Parameters capability will substitute each Fiscal Year value, refresh the workbook automatically and ensure that the distributed PackNGo workbook contains all of the Fiscal Year data so the recipient can select different Fiscal Years and review the different data variations.

Distributing Reports to non-BizInsight Users

When non-BizInsight users open workbooks containing BizInsight functions, the values in the cells will be replaced with #NAME? or #VALUE if Excel recalculates the workbook. Workbooks containing BizInsight functions can be provided to non-BizInsight users in the following ways:

- Send the recipient a PackNGo version of the workbook. They will need BizInsight 7 but will not need a connection to the ERP system.
- Use BizBroadcast to produce a 'values' only version of the workbook.
- Save the workbook in a PDF or XPS format.
- Copy all functions, or just BizInsight functions, and paste as values. Be sure to make a copy of your original report before doing this.
- Send the workbook as is to the non-BizInsight recipient and they must put Excel in manual calculation mode before opening the workbook. This will prevent Excel from recalculating the BizInsight functions in the workbook.

Analyzing Other Data

In addition to the pre-defined Functions and Tables that retrieve data from your ERP system, BizInsight can be used against any table of data that exists in Excel.

Following are the basic steps to use BizInsight to analyze other data:

- 1. Get the data into Excel
- 2. Use Select Data to load the data into BizInsight memory
- 3. Use *fx* **Query Data** button to create your Functions

Each step is described in more detail below.

1. Get Data

First you must get the data into Excel and there are many ways to do that:

- CSV
- Copy/Paste
- Excel's Get External Data feature (See <u>Get External Data</u> section)
- BizInsight Table

2. Select Data

Once the data is in Excel, it needs to be loaded into memory for BizInsight.

Click **Select Data** on the BizInsight ribbon.

If your data was retrieved using a BizInsight List or has already been assigned an Excel range name, select the list or Excel range from the **Select an existing range Name** drop down:

Select Data	- ×
Where is your data?	
Select a range of cells	
Or Select an existing range Name	
Select an existing table v Back Next Can	cel

If your data is formatted as an Excel table, that table name will be listed in the **Select an** existing table drop down list:

Select Data	- ×
Where is your data?	
Select a range of cells	
Name your selection	
Create as a table	
Or	
Select an existing range Name	
USA_Balances_1	
Back Next Can	cel

If your data has not already been assigned an Excel range name and is not a BizInsight list, click the **Grid Box** to select the range of cells that your data is in.



Make sure to include Column Headers.

Select Data	₹×
Where is your data?	
Select a range of cells	
Name your selection	
Create as a table	
Or	
Select an existing range Name	
Select an existing table	
Back Next Cano	æl

Once you have selected your cells, the range will appear in the Cell Selection dialog box.

Click OK.

Cell Selection			▼	×
Excel Local Range	'Sheet7'!\$B\$1:\$D\$232	ОК]	

Give your range a name so you can refer to it later. This name will be referenced in all Functions and Lists created by BizInsight. BizInsight supports multiple data cache items.



The Name entered cannot have any spaces, however the underscore symbol is acceptable, for example, New_USA_Balances_1

Check the **Create as a Table** box if you would like the data range formatted as an Excel Table object which makes managing and analyzing a group of related data easier. By using the Excel Table features, you can then manage the data in the table rows and columns independently from the data in other rows and columns on the worksheet.

Select Data	₹×
Where is your data?	
Select a range of cells Sheet1'!\$A\$7:\$AL\$1329	
Name your selection New_USA_Balances	
Create as a table	



The Create as a table option should not be selected for any BizInsight created list because it will serve as the link between the list and BizInsight resulting in a static, non-refreshable list of data.

Click **Next** to continue.

Back	Next	Cancel

BizInsight will make a best attempt to identify your column data format but gives you the option to select a different data format. Make any adjustments, if needed, and click **Next** to continue.

Select Data		-×						
Select your column format								
Column Name	Format							
Company	Text ~	^						
FiscYear	Text ×							
FiscPer	Number ^v							
FiscQTR	Number v							
AcctGroupID	Text v							
AcctTypeID	Text ~							
GLAcctNo	Text ~							
FormattedGLAcctNo	Text ~							
Segment1	Text v	\sim						
Check for errors in data								
Back Next	Can	cel						

The below message will display to confirm that your data is now in Excel's memory and the data can be accessed using the name "USA_Balances_1."

Click **OK** to close.

BizInsight ×
"USA_Balances_1 was loaded with 50236 elements.
OK
Notice there are two existing Range Names saved to memory.

Select Data	₹×
Where is your data?	
Select a range of cells	
Or Select an existing range Name New_USA_Balances USA_Balances_1	
Back Next Can	cel

3. Use BizInsight Query

To work with the data in memory, click on the *fx* Query Data button on the BizInsight ribbon. This will open the **BizInsight Query** dialog.

The BizInsight Query dialog is comprised of two sections: Declaration and Filtering. These two sections are described below.

BizInsight Query			- × ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data? Excel v	What action would you like to take?	
f_{x} Function	Which data set?	What information would you like returned ~	
🚃 Data Validation		Reverse sign	
∑ Expression	Declaration		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Fil	ter Reset Filters		
	Filtering		
Save		OK Cancel Start Over	



The BizInsight Query dialog may be pre-populated with the values you last used. User the Start Over button to clear all previous values.

Declaration Section

Tables return the records matching the filter criteria. Tables are often the building blocks for reports.

Functions return data to a single cell, representing a calculated value; an answer.

Data Validation returns the matching records as a data validation list.

Expression - is a combination of some or all of the following: built-in or user-defined functions, identifiers, operators, and constants that evaluates to a single value.

BizInsight Query	
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?
Table	Excel
f_{x} Function	Which data set?
🚃 Data Validation	
Σ Expression	

If you want to use data from your ERP system, change the **Where is Your Data** drop down to "BizNet GL". Otherwise, use "Excel" for data you've added to your workbook from a source other than Biznet.

BizInsight Query				
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?			
Table	Excel			
f_{x} Function	Excel			
Data Validation	BizNet GL			
Σ Expression	5			
and more a				

The **Which data set** field will display all datasets that have been loaded into Excel's memory when the **Where is your data** field is set to Excel.

BizInsight Query	5
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?
Table	Excel
f _x Function	Which data set?
Data Validation	New_USA_Balances USA_Balances_1
Σ Expression	
Varia and a series	and a second and a second and a second se

If the **Where is your data** drop down is set to "BizNet GL", the **Which data set** dropdown list will display all available data sources.

BizInsight Query			
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?		
Table	BizNet GL 🗸		
f_{x} Function	Which data set?		
🚃 Data Validation	Account Groups		
∑ Expression	Accounts Budget Codes		
	Companies Company Name		
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete F	GL Balances GL Balances Year to Date		
A patron (and	GL Budnets		

Function Options

When the Function option is selected, the BizInsight Query dialog updates to display additional dropdown options once the Data Set is selected:

BizInsight Query		
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	What action would you like to take?
Table	BizNet Sample Data	Sum ~
f_{x} Function	Which data set? GL Balances	What information would you like returned
Data Validation		Reverse sign

Choose an action to perform. BizInsight supports the following actions:

SUM	Sum of selected data.		
Min	Minimum value identified in data.		
Мах	Maximum value identified in data.		
Average	Average value of selected data.		
CSV	Comma Separated Value list of selected data. When CSV is selected, additional options are displayed.		
	What action would you like to take? CSV Distinct What information would you like returned What information would you like returned Distinct removes duplicate values. Sorted returned values will be sorted in ascending order, [0-9] [A-Z].		
	Vote Note		
	The CSV action is best used whenever building a query against a text field of data.		

Count	Count of data elements that fit the filter criteria. When Count is selected, an additional option is displayed.		
	What action would you like to take?		
	Distinct duplicate values are not considered in the operation.		
StDev	Standard deviation of selected data.		
Var	Variance of selected data.		

The **What information would you like returned** dropdown is populated with all of the columns recognized in your data source. You will need to identify the column on which you would like to perform the selected action.

What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	What action would you like to take?
Table	BizNet Sample Data	v Sum v
f Eunction	Which data set?	What information would you like returned
14	GL Balances	VetAmount
Data Validation		Reverse sign Sum Net
∑ Expression		Amount

Table Options

When the Table option is selected in the BizInsight Query dialog, you can specify whether to return the results as a Table, Pivot Table or Super Table. See <u>Drilldown</u> for more information about the differences between these Table options.

Bizl	BizInsight Query				
1	What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Return my results as a: 🌛		
	Table	BizNet GL v	Table		
	f_x Function	Which data set? GL Balances	Table Pivot Table		
	Data Validation	Make Dynamic			

The **Remove Duplicates** checkbox is useful for generating distinct lists of values in both tables and data validation lists.

BizInsight Query				
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Return my results as a:		
Table	BizNet Sample Data V	Table v		
f_{x} Function	Which data set? GL Balances v	Select Columns		
Data Validation	Make Dynamic	✓ Include Column Headers ☐ Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells		
Σ Expression		3		
and and a second		- And and a second		

Click the **Select Columns** button to choose the column(s) to display in your list.

BizInsight Query		
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Return my results as a:
Table	BizNet Sample Data 🛛 🗸	Table v
f_{x} Function	Which data set? GL Balances	Select Columns Remove Duplicates
Data Validation	Make Dynamic	✓ Include Column Headers

Uncheck the Select All box and check the column name(s) to include in the Table. Click OK.

The available columns in the data set are presented in ascending or descending alphabetical order by toggling the up/down arrows. The curved arrow returns the columns to their default order.



5

11

✓ TotalCre dits
 ✓ AdjTotal Debits
 ✓ AdjTotal Credits
 ✓ NetBala ce

Cancel

OK

Click **OK** again to close the BizInsight Query dialog.



Choose your Target Cell and click **OK** to add the table to the Excel worksheet.

Cell Selection		•	×
Target Cell	"Sheet6"!\$F\$17		

The **Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells** option will ensure that formulas directly adjacent to the table are copied down to new rows that are inserted when the table is refreshed.

	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J	К	L	м	N	
1															
2	Company	BNE	D.	the state of the state	0										
3	Year	2013	Bizi	nzinsight Query											
4	Period	1		What would	d vou like to	create?			1.1.2		D !				A
5				mat woul	a you like to	create:	Whe	ere is your	data?		Return	n my result	ts as a:		W
6	Segment 1	MTDNET		Table			Biz	Net Sampl	e Data	~	Table	• · ·	1		
7	1100	1,824.00		0			14/b :	ch data act	2						
8	1110	ļ l		∱ x Funct	tion		whi	ch data set							
9	1200	[Ace	counts		v	Sele	ct Column	ns 🗌 Re	move Dupli	cates
10	1205			Data	Validation		<u> </u>	Jaka D	mic			lude C-	malleri		
11	1809							маке Dyna	THC			- WOR COLU	um Header		
12	1310										(🗹 Fill	Down For	rmulas in A	\djacent Cell	ls)
13	1350			Evore	ssion										
14	1430			Z cxpre											
15	1510														
16	1515														
17	1520		Ad	ld Filter	Copy Filter	Delete	e Filter	Reset Filte	rs						
18	1525		F												
19	1540			~~~~		~~~		the second s	and the second						
-	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н							
2	Company	BNE													
3	Year	2013													
4	Period	1													
5		_					-								
6	Segment 1	MTDNET					-								
7	1100	1,824.00													
8	1110	-													
9	1200	7,105.00							<u> </u>						
10	1205	(106.00)							<u> </u>						
11	1809	8,887.00													
12	1310	(3,304.16)	1				1		-						
13	1350	(208.00)	V						-						
14	1430	(93.00)	*												
15	1510	-													
	+ .														

In the upper right corner of the BizInsight Query dialog is a settings button. This button lets you customize some aspects of the product. See the <u>BizInsight Query Settings Button</u> section for more information about the available options.

BizInsight Query		· ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	What action would you like to take? 🌔 🧔
Table	Excel ~	Sum v
fx Function	Which data set?	What information would you like returned
	~	~
han mastall lisson		And for the second seco

Filtering Section

Click the **Add Filter** button to add a filter to your formula.

BizInsight Query		
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	Return my results as a:
Table	BizNet Sample Data v	Table ~
f_{x} Function	Which data set? GL Balances ~	Select Columns
🚃 Data Validation	🗌 Make Dynamic	Include Column Headers
Σ Expression		Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete F	ilter Reset Filters	

There are three fields for creating a filter:

The first field is populated by all the columns recognized in your data set.

Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete Filter Reset Filters
CompanyCode	
CompanyCode FiscalYear	· • •
Profile	
Account	
AccountGroup	
AccountKey	
BeginningBalance CompanyName	
CreditAmount	OK Cancel Start Over
EndingBalance	, []

Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete Filter	Reset Filters
CompanyCode ~	= ~	BNE -
FiscalYear ~	= ~	2013 ~
Segment1 ~	v	~
Save	= != ~ ~ = LIKE IN NOT IN	OK Cancel Start Over

The second field is a logical operator to evaluate the selected column.

BizInsight provides the following logical operators for filter criteria:

Operator	Description
=	Equal To: Used with single values and only exact matches are returned.
!=	Does Not Equal: Used with single values; records matching this criterion are excluded.
>	Value(s) is Greater Than.
<	Value(s) are Less Than.
>=	Value(s) are Greater Than or Equal To.
<=	Value(s) are Less Than or Equal To.
LIKE	Compares numbers and text. The only available wild card is an asterisk ("*").
IN	Creates an inclusive list of values for filtering. For example: Segment1 IN ('1205','1310') will return balances where Segment1 is either '1205' or 1310'.
NOT IN	Creates an exclusive list of values for filtering. For example: Segment1 NOT IN ('1000', '1200') will return balances for all Segment1 values except '1000' and '1200'.



Some fields are restricted to a single value. In that circumstance, the Operator dropdown list will only display the "=" operator.

The third field is the limiting value. You can either select a value from the Available Values list or use the grid button to browse to a cell to reference.

Add Filter Copy Filter	Delete Filter	Reset Filters
CompanyCode	~ = ~	BNE Grid button to choose
FiscalYear	~ = ~	2013 · R cell reference
FiscalPeriod	~ = ~	1 ~
Segment1	✓ IN 	Select All
		Select All ∧ ✓ 1100 ↓ □ 1110 ↓ ✓ 1200 Available □ 1205 Values
Save		И 1309 List □ 1310 ОК Cancel □ 1350 У ОК

When you are finished adding filters, click the **OK** button at the bottom.



MPORTANT

If the buttons are not visible, resize the BizInsight Query Dialog box.



You will be asked for your target cell. The target cell is simply where you want your Function or Table to be inserted. Navigate to the proper cell and click **OK**. The default Target Cell will be the cell selected when the **BizInsight Query** dialog was opened.

Cell Select	on	•	×
Excel Range	'Sheet1'!\$A\$1	ОК	

Combining Biznet Data with External Data

The following example illustrates how to use BizInsight to build a report using data that is not in your ERP system. The below example creates a consolidated Income Statement with data retrieved by a Connector ("BNE") and a second company ("USA") from a different ERP system.

Company	 EXD	<u>USA</u>	Consolidated		
Revenue					
Sales	\$ 1,483,280	\$ 13,914,573	\$	15,397,853	
Sales Returns	\$ 13,057	\$ 8,184	\$	21,241	
Sales Discounts	\$ 43,516	\$ 27,279	\$	70, 795	
Net Sales	\$ 1,426,708	\$ 13,879,110	\$	15,305,817	
cogs	\$ 1,045,198	\$ 265,696	\$	1,310,894	
Gross Profit	\$ 381,509	\$ 13,613,414	\$	13,994,923	
Gross Profit %	27%	98%		91%	
				_	
Expenses			~~	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	

The USA company data was brought into Excel using one of the methods described in the <u>Get</u> <u>Data</u>.

Company	FiscYear	FiscPer	Segment1	Segment2	Segment3	Segment4	MTDCredit	MTDDebit	MTDNet	MTDEndBal
USA	2015	1	4500	00	00	00	0	99421.1	99421.1	9942
USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	00	2185	13354605.37	13352420.37	13352420
USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	NE	15500	277299.03	261799.03	261799.0
USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	NW	0	17502	17502	1750
USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	SE	0	27369.05	27369.05	27369.0
USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	SW	1739	93911.01	92172.01	92172
USA	2015	1	4500	20	00	NE	300	12084	11784	11
USA	2015	1	4500	20	00	NW	0	1576	1576	15
USA	2015	1	4500	20	00	SE	0	2196	2196	215
USA	2015	1	4500	20	00	SW	1264.25	28598	27333.75	27332
USA	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~			30.		N	0	475	4750	

With the USA company data in Excel, it needs to be loaded as an Excel data set to BizInsight's memory. Use the **Select Data** button on the ribbon to open the **Select Data** dialog.

F	ile	BizInsight	:7 In	sert	Page Layou	t Forn	nulas	Data	Reviev	v Hon	ne Vi	iew Develo	oper Add-ins
Bizl	Load Insight7	? BizNet Assistant	Select Data	<i>fx</i> Query Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	X Design Mode	Q View Data	Check for Errors	PackNGo	F Activate	🚭 Updates ाणा About	Configuration
	BizInsight												

Since this data has not been assigned an Excel range name nor been converted to an Excel Table, the **Select a range of cells** section can be used to select the data.

Select Data	÷ ×
Where is your data?	
Select a range of cells	
Name your selection	
Create as a table	
Or	
Select an existing range Name	
Select an existing table	
Back Next Can	cel

	А	В	С	D	E	F	
1	Company	FiscYear	FiscPer	Segment1	Segment2	Segment3	Segri
2	USA	2015	1	4500	00	00	00 🧹
3	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	00 🧹
4	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	NE }
5	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	NY
6	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	SE 🄇
7	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	sw
8	USA	2015	1	4500	20	00	NE 🕽
9	USA	2015	\sim 1	4500	20	00	Nur
han an a		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		vor~~			9



When manually selecting a range of data, be sure to include column headers.

Use the Name your selection field to assign a name to the data set.

Select Data	~ X								
Where is your data?									
Select a range of cells									
Or Select an existing range Name									
v Select an existing table									
Back Next Can	cel								



The name entered cannot have any spaces however, the underscore symbol is acceptable, e.g. USA_Balances.

Check the **Create as a Table** box to format the data range as an Excel table object.

Select Data	₹×
Where is your data?	
- Select a range of cells	
Or Select an existing range Name	
Select an existing table	
Back Next Car	ncel



The Create as a table option should <u>**not**</u> be selected for any BizInsight created Table because it will sever the link between the table and BizInsight resulting in a static, non-refreshable list of data.

Click **Next** to continue.

BizInsight will take a best guess at the format of the data for each column but the next dialog provides the opportunity to adjust the default data format if needed. Click **Next** to continue.

Column Name	Format		
Company	Text	v	\sim
FiscYear	Number	Ý	
FiscPer	Number	Ý	
Segment1	Text	Ý	
Segment2	Text	Ý	
Segment3	Text	v	
Segment4	Text	v	
MTDCredit	Number	v	
MTDDebit	Number	Ý	\sim
Check for errors in data			

Click **OK** to acknowledge all of the data was loaded.

XL Connect	×
"USA_Balances was loaded with 21152 elements.	
ок	

Fil	le	Home In:	sert Page	Layout I	Formulas Da	ata Review	View XI	. Connect Cloud	Edition			>
Ê		Cut Copy =	Calibri	- 11	Ă Ă		≫ - i w	rap Text	General	•	5	Normal
Past *	te 🧃	Format Painter	BIU	I • 🔛 •	🏷 • <u>A</u> •		🛱 🛊 🔜 M	erge & Center 🔻	\$ - % ,	.00 .00 Cor .00 →.0 Forr	iditional Forr natting ≠ as Ta	hat Check
	Clip	board 5	i	Font	G.		Alignment	Ea.	Number	- Gi		Z
		Т8	- (8	f_{x}								
>>		А	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J	К
	1	Company 💌	FiscYear 💌	FiscPer 💌	Segment1 💌	Segment2 💌	Segment3 💌	Segment4 💌	MTDCredit 💌	MTDDebit 💌	MTDNet 💌	MTDEndBal
	2	USA	2015	1	4500	00	00	00	0	99421.1	99421.1	99421
	З	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	00	2185	13354605.37	13352420	13352420.
	4	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	NE	15500	277299.03	261799.03	261799.0
	5	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	NW	0	17502	17502	1750
	6	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	SE	0	27369.05	27369.05	27369.0
	7	USA	2015	1	4500	10	00	SW	1739	93911.01	92172.01	92172.0
	8	USA	2015	1	4500	20	00	NE	300	12084	11784	1178
	9	USA	2015	1	4500	20	00	NW	0	1576	1576	15
~~	120		275		1=00		Al-	AF		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	2196	and

Once the data is loaded as an Excel data set, use the *fx* Query Data button on the BizInsight ribbon to create a Function.

File	BizInsight	7 In	sert	Page Layou	t Form	nulas	Data	Review	v Hon	ne Vi	ew Develo	per Add-ins
Load BizInsight7	? BizNet Assistant	Select Data	<i>fx</i> ^{Query} Data	Refresh Workbooks	Calculate Formulas	Design Mode Biz	View Data	Check for Errors	PackNGo	F Activate	€ Updates Ⅲ About	Configuration

In the screenshot below the following steps were performed:

- a. Selected USA_Balances from the Where is your data? drop down list.
- b. Selected the **Sum** operator
- c. Selected the **MTDNet** field for the **What information would you like returned** drop down list.
- d. Added FiscYear, Company and Segment1 for filters.

What would you like to create? Table fx Function	Where is your data? Excel × Which data set? USA_Balances	What action would you like to take? Sum B What information would you like returned MTDNet C				
Data Validation Expression						
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filte	er Reset Filters					
FiscYear 👻 =	Sheet1'!B\$8	2007				
Company ~ =	Sheet1'! \$A 8	SOA D				
Segment1 ~ =	Sheet1'!G8	 450000000 				

The F4 button was used to properly anchor cell references so that the Function could be copied and the cell references updates appropriately. For more information about cell anchoring see **Excel Cell Anchoring** in the Appendix.

Once one Function has been built, it can be copied down for the entire USA column. Below is the completed Consolidated Income statement for both EXD and USA data. Keep in mind that the USA data was imported from an outside source and incorporated into the Consolidated Income statement using BizInsight Functions.

Company		EVD		1164		Concolidated
Boyopuo		EXD		USA		Consolidated
Salas	e	1 /02 200	ć		ć	1 //02 200
Sales Returns	e e	12 057	ç	0 10/	ç	21 2/1
Sales Neturns	e e	13,037	ç	27 279	ç	21,241
Net Sales	\$	1,426,708	\$	(35,463)	\$	1,391,244
cogs	Ś	1.045.198	Ś	265.696	Ś	1.310.894
Gross Profit	Ś	381,509	Ś	(301,159)	Ś	80,350
Gross Profit %	-	27%		849%		6%
Expenses						
Salary Expense	\$	116,082	\$	74,065	\$	190,147
Officers Comp	\$	40,165	\$	14,421	\$	54,586
Depreciation Expense	\$	6,749	\$	4,365	\$	11,114
Office Expense	\$	6,008	\$	4,022	\$	10,030
Supplies	\$	27,534	\$	738	\$	28,272
Maintenance	\$	1,599	\$	1,299	\$	2,898
Rent	\$	14,414	\$	10,187	\$	24,601
Travel	\$	9,157	\$	8,630	\$	17,787
Advertising	\$	13,709	\$	7,800	\$	21,509
Commissions Expense	\$	23,205	\$	19,548	\$	42,753
Income Tax Expense	\$	9,310	\$	4,220	\$	13,530
Interest Expense	\$	1,282	\$	789	\$	2,071
Total Expenses	\$	269,214	\$	150,084	\$	419,298
Net income	\$	112,295	\$	(451,243)	\$	(338,948)

Saving Data to the Navigation Pane in BizInsight 7 without a Connector

Data can also be saved to the Navigation Pane in the form of a function, table or Data Validation list. For example, I've created a dataset in Excel and named it Transactions. I saved this dataset because I will be using it often.

BizInsight Query × What would you like to create? Ô Return my results as a: Where is your data? v Table Excel Table Which data set? f_{x} Function v Transactions Table Select Columns Remove Duplicates Data Validation Make Dynamic ✓ Include Column Headers Fill Down Formulas in Adjacent Cells Expression Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters My data is saved in Excel. I've named the data set Transaction Table. Click to Save the **Transactions Table** to your Navigation Pane Save ок Cancel Start Over

Click on the fx Query Data button to open the BizInsight Query editor.



All Workbook Query objects exist only within the workbook. They do not persist across workbooks like Favorites do for BizInsight 7 installations with a Connector.

If Excel has been restarted, I must open my Transactions Workbook to see my Transactions Table that I saved to the Navigation Pane.

রি হ	• ¢ • •	;						Book1 - Excel		
File	Home	Insert	Page Layout	Formu	Ilas Data	Review View	v Bizlnsight7 Q) Tell me what you want to do		
Load BizInsight7	BizNet Assistant	Select Data	fx Query Refresh Data Workbook	Calcul s Formu	ate Design View las Mode Dat BizInsight	w Check Activ a for Errors	C Updates IIII About ate			
12	• :	\times	$\checkmark f_x$							
Di-L					А		В	с	D	E
S BIZI	nsignt/		<	1						
\sim			0	2						
E H	OME		'n.	/ 3	Account	AccountD	lesc	AccountGroup	CompanyCode	CreditAmount
				4	50001100001	Salary Ex	pense-Stores-Housto	n 5	BNE	
World		orion		5	50001100002	Salary Ex	pense-Dist-Houston	5	BNE	
VVOLKI.	JOOK QU	ienes		6	50001200003	Salary Exp	pense-Research-Hou:	ston 5	BNE	
Euro et				7	50001200004	Salary Exp	pense-Gallery-Housto	on 5	BNE	
Funct	lons			8	50002100001	Salary Exp	oense-Stores-S.A.	5	BNE	
Table	_			9	50002100002	Salary Exp	oense-Dist-S.A.	5	BNE	
Table	S			10	50002200003	Salary Exp	oense-Research-S.A.	5	BNE	
				11	50002200004	Salary Ex	oense-Gallery-S.A.	5	BNE	
Data	validatio	ns		12	52501100001	Rent-Stor	res-Houston	5	BNE	
				13	52501100002	Rent-Dist	ribution-Houston	5	BNE	
				14	52501200003	Rent-Res	earch-Houston	5	BNE	
				15	52501200004	Rent-Gall	ery-Houston	5	BNE	
				10	52502100001	Dank Char		-	DAIC	

			А	В		
🕸 Bizinsight/	<	1				
~		2	Account	AccountDesc		
HOME	S-	9	50001100001	Salary Expense-Stores-Housto		
		4	5000110			
Westlessly Overside		5	50001 Refresh	the -Research-Hou:		
workbook Queries		б	50001 Navigati	ion PaneGallery-Housto		
From all and a		7	50002100001	Jarary LAPENSe-Stores-S.A.		
Functions		8 50002100002 9 50002200003		Salary Expense-Dist-S.A.		
T-blas				Salary Expense-Research-S		
≥ Tables	1	10	50002200004	Salary Expense-Gallery-S.A.		
There exists a	1	11	52501100001	Rent-Stores-Houston		
H Iransactions	1	12	52501100002	Rent-Distribution-Houston		
Data) (di dati ang	1	13	52501200003	Rent-Research-Houston		
Data validations	1	14	52501200004	Rent-Gallery-Houston		
	1	15	52502100001	Rent-Stores-S.A.		
	1	16	52502100002	Rent-Distribution-S.A.		

Useful BizInsight and Excel™ Capabilities

One of the key benefits of BizInsight is the fact that it is an add-in to Excel. This means that in addition to capabilities provided by BizInsight itself, you have the full capabilities of Excel to use in your report design.

Following are just some examples of BizInsight and Excel capabilities that can be useful in your report design:

Suppressing Zero Rows

Use Excel's filter capability to suppress report rows with no data.

Protecting Worksheets

Use Excel's worksheet protection capability to protect your report design from user changes.

Dynamic Report Titles

An alternate approach to using VLOOKUP for dynamic report headers is to use the SetBizProperty7 and GetBizProperty7 BizInsight functions to create dynamic report headers. The value is stored in your metadata for use across multiple reports.

Suppressing Zero Rows

A common need in a report is to suppress the display of rows that are all zero. You can use the Excel[™] filter capability to accomplish this task.

1. The following data contains a row that needs to be suppressed. You can see that there are rows that have no data across all three columns.

	Α	С	D	E	F	G	н
1		Company	BNE				
2		Year	2014				
3							
4							
5		SegmentCode	SegmentDesc	1	2	3	
6		1100	Cash-Checking	\$ 19,562.00	\$ 7,092.00	\$ 20,591.00	
7		1110	Money Market (Short-Term)	\$ 228.00	\$ 229.00	\$ 230.00	
8		1200	Accounts Receivable	\$ 3,010.00	\$ 3,070.00	\$ 3,132.00	
9		1205	Allowance for Bad Debt	\$ (78.00)	\$ (41.00)	\$ (40.00)	
10		1309	Due from BNC	\$ 503.00	\$ 518.09	\$ 533.63	
11		1310	Inventory	\$ 131,832.66	\$ 83,480.32	\$ 80,192.80	
12		1350	Inventory Supplies	\$ (43.00)	\$ (44.00)	\$ (43.00)	
13		1430	Prepaid Other	\$ (212.00)	\$ (202.00)	\$ (192.00)	
14		1510	Leasehold Improvements	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
15		1515	Accum. Depr Lease Imprvmnts	\$ (2,400.00)	\$ (2,400.00)	\$ (2,400.00)	
16		1520	Office Furniture & Fixtures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
17		1525	Accum. Depr OF&F	\$ (1,190.00)	\$ (1,190.00)	\$ (1,190.00)	
18		1540	Office Equipment	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
19		1545	Accum. Depr Office Equip	\$ (1,265.00)	\$ (1,265.00)	\$ (1,265.00)	
20		1600	Money Market (Long-Term)	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
21		1809	Investment in BNC	\$ 3,562.00	\$ 4,455.00	\$ 4,843.00	
22		2100	Accounts Payable	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
23							

2. Create a column to check whether rows are all zeros

С	D	E	F	G	н	1.0	
Company	BNE						
Year	2014						
SegmentCode	SegmentDesc	1	2	3		ChkRows	
1100	Cash-Checking	\$ 19,562.00	\$ 7,092.00	\$ 20,591.00			
1110	Money Market (Short-Term)	\$ 228.00	\$ 229.00	\$ 230.00			
1200	Accounts Receivable	\$ 3,010.00	\$ 3,070.00	\$ 3,132.00			
1205	Allowance for Bad Debt	\$ (78.00)	\$ (41.00)	\$ (40.00)			
1309	Due from BNC	\$ 503.00	\$ 518.09	\$ 533.63			
1310	Inventory	\$ 131,832.66	\$ 83,480.32	\$ 80,192.80			
1350	Inventory Supplies	\$ (43.00)	\$ (44.00)	\$ (43.00)			

3. In the check column, enter the formula:

=IF(AND(MIN(\$D8:\$F8)=0,MAX(\$D8:\$F8)=0),0,1)

and copy that formula to each cell in the check column.

$f_{\mathbf{x}}$	=IF(AND(MIN(\$	D8:\$F8)=0,MAX(\$D8:\$F8)=0),0,1)					
Α	С	D	E	F	G	н	1.00
	Company	BNE					
	Year	2014					
	SegmentCode	SegmentDesc	1	2	3		ChkRows
	1100	Cash-Checking	\$ 19,562.00	\$ 7,092.00	\$ 20,591.00		1
	1110	Money Market (Short-Term)	\$ 228.00	\$ 229.00	\$ 230.00		1
	1200	Accounts Receivable	\$ 3,010.00	\$ 3,070.00	\$ 3,132.00		1
	1205	Allowance for Bad Debt	\$ (78.00)	\$ (41.00)	\$ (40.00)		1
	1309	Due from BNC	\$ 503.00	\$ 518.09	\$ 533.63		1
	1310	Inventory	\$ 131,832.66	\$ 83,480.32	\$ 80,192.80		1
	1350	Inventory Supplies	\$ (43.00)	\$ (44.00)	\$ (43.00)		0

Create a filter on column H. Select your ChkRows cell and then click on Home > Sort
 & Filter > Filter

Σ - 	A Zu Sort Filter	& Find & Select ≠							
	₽↓	Sort A to Z							
	Z↓	S <u>o</u> rt Z to A	≈						
н	V	C <u>u</u> stom Sort	-						
	7 =	<u>F</u> ilter							
	\mathbb{K}	<u>C</u> lear							
	P	Reapply							
ChkRov -									

5. Click on the drop down next to ChkRows and uncheck the "0" from the filter list.



	C	D	E	F	G	н	1 A 4	
1	Company	BNE						
2	Year	2014						
3								
4								
5	SegmentCode	SegmentDesc	1	2	3		ChkRov 🗐	
6	1100	Cash-Checking	\$ 19,562.00	\$ 7,092.00	\$ 20,591.00		1	
7	1110	Money Market (Short-Term)	\$ 228.00	\$ 229.00	\$ 230.00		1	
8	1200	Accounts Receivable	\$ 3,010.00	\$ 3,070.00	\$ 3,132.00		1	
9	1205	Allowance for Bad Debt	\$ (78.00)	\$ (41.00)	\$ (40.00)		1	
10	1309	Due from BNC	\$ 503.00	\$ 518.09	\$ 533.63		1	
11	1310	Inventory	\$ 131,832.66	\$ 83,480.32	\$ 80,192.80		1	
13	1430	Prepaid Other	\$ (212.00)	\$ (202.00)	\$ (192.00)		1	
15	1515	Accum. Depr Lease Imprvmnts	\$ (2,400.00)	\$ (2,400.00)	\$ (2,400.00)		1	
17	1525	Accum. Depr OF&F	\$ (1,190.00)	\$ (1,190.00)	\$ (1,190.00)		1	
19	1545	Accum. Depr Office Equip	\$ (1,265.00)	\$ (1,265.00)	\$ (1,265.00)		1	

6. Check your sample data table to confirm that the rows that have no data are no longer displayed.

When you have Total rows or blank rows that you want to always display, hard code the ChkRows value for those rows to "1".



Don't forget that as you work with BizInsight, you have all of Excel's capabilities at your disposal. It is possible to create a macro that will reapply the filter after Excel re-calculates. There are many web sites with information on creating macros and using the AutoFilter method in Excel.

Protecting Worksheets

Excel provides the ability to protect worksheets so that users cannot change them. This capability can be very useful for protecting BizInsight reports from inadvertent changes by users but even more importantly, it can be used in conjunction with cell references to restrict the data that other users can see in a report.

Below is an example report that will be used to illustrate how to protect a report from being changed.

1	A	В	C	D	E	F	G
1							
2		Company	BNE				
3		Year	2010				
4		Department	000				
5							
6		Segment1Code	SegmentDesc	1	2	3	
7		1100	Cash-Checking	1824	1872	-13333.6	
8		1110	Money Market (Short-Term)	0	0	0	
9		1200	Accounts Receivable	7105	7348	7750.74	
10		1205	Allowance for Bad Debt	-106	-111	-116.24	
11		1809	Investment ip FWC	8887	9837	11122.11	
12		8009	Earnings/(Loss) from FWC	-8887	-9837	-11122.1	
13		1309	Due from BNC	717.16	738.67	760.83	
14		1310	Inventory	-3304.16	5320.33	82249.65	
15		1350	Inventory Supplies	-208	-199	-194.76	
16		1430	Prepaid Other	-93	-89	-86.67	
17		1510	Leasehold Improvements	0	0	0	
18		1515	Accum. Depr Lease Imprvmnts	-2400	-2400	-2447.29	
19		1520	Office Furniture & Fixtures	0	0	0	
20		1525	Accum. Depr OF&F	-1490	-1490	-1519.35	
21		1540	Office Equipment	0	0	0	
22		1545	Accum. Depr Office Equip	-1265	-1265	-1289.92	
23		1600	Money Market (Long-Term)	0	0	0	
24		2100	Accounts Payable	8047	-1792	12412.8	

In this example report, we want non-Designer users to be able to drilldown on the functions but not be able to change the Location value, the Company or any of the accounts listed in column B in the report. To accomplish this, you would do the following:

- 1. Design the report so that the functions in the report use cell references with appropriate anchoring for the input parameters, in this case:
 - a. CompanyCode (\$C\$2)
 - b. FiscalYear (\$C\$3)
 - c. FiscalPeriod (D\$6)
 - d. Segment1 (\$B7)
 - e. Location which is Segment3 (\$C\$4)

1	A	8	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	1	ĸ	L
1 2 3 4		Company Year Department	BNE 2010 000									
5												
6		Segment1Code	SegmentDesc	1	2	3						
7		1100	Cash-Checking	(,,\$C\$4)	1872	-13333.6						
8		1110	Money Market (Short-Term)		0 0	0	_	-	_	-		niad
9		1200	Accounts Receivable	71	Function Arg	ments			_			TN
10		1205	Allowance for Bad Debt	-1	MIDNET							1000
11		1809	Investment in FWC	88	Company	182		10	- "345" -			-
12		8009	Earnings/(Loss) from FWC	-88	Year	\$C\$3		16	= 2010			100
13		1309	Due from BNC	717.	Davised	lots.		14	- 1			
14		1310	Inventory	-3304.	Teriou	1040		100		22		
15		1350	Inventory Supplies	-2	Segments	\$87		14	= "1100			
16		1430	Prepaid Other		Segment2	1			•			-
17		1510	Leasehold Improvements						= 1824			
18		1515	Accum. Depr Lease Imprvmnts	-24	Month To Date	Net Amount.						
19		1520	Office Furniture & Fixtures				Company	Establish con	npany code (required).		
20		1525	Accum. Depr OF&F	-14								
21		1540	Office Equipment									
22		1545	Accum. Depr Office Equip	-12	Formula result	- 1824						
23		1600	Money Market (Long-Term)			an-						
24		2100	Accounts Payable	80	Help on this fur	A 1000				0		Cancel
100			12 124		10 m	34						

2. For each cell that you want users to be able to change, right-click on the cell and choose Format Cells (Note: these are Excel 2007 instructions).

4	A	В	С		D	E	F	G
1								
2		Company		BNE				
3		Year		2010	127			
4		Department		0	Cut			
5		2010		u a	Copy			
6		Segment1Code	SegmentDesc		Paste			1
7		1100	Cash-Checking		Paste Sp	ecial	5	
8		1110	Money Market (Short-Term)		Insert)	
9		1200	Accounts Receivable		Delete		1	
10		1205	Allowance for Bad Debt		Clear Co	ntents	1	
11		1809	Investment in FWC	_	Filter		. 1	
12		8009	Earnings/(Loss) from FWC	_	Sad		. 1	
13		1309	Due from BNC	-	2011)	
14		1310	Inventory		Insert Co	mment	5	
15		1350	Inventory Supplies	1	Eormat C	ells	5	
16		1430	Prepaid Other		Pick From	n Drop-dow	n List 7	
17		1510	Leasehold Improvements		Name a E	ange)	
18		1515	Accum Denr - Lease Impromote	100	Contraction of the			

3. Uncheck the **Locked** checkbox on the **Protection** tab.

ustom List	s					? ×
Number	Alignment	Font	Border	Fill	Protection	
	\mathbf{k}					
Locking cel tab, Chang	ls or hiding for jes group, Pro	mulas has tect Sheet	no effect button).	until you p	protect the worksh	eet (Review
					ОК	Capcel

In the example report, we want users to be able to change only the year and be able to drilldown on the functions. So, we need to turn off the Locked property for the cell containing the Fiscal Year (B3) and for each of the cells that contain functions (D7 through F51).

4. After unlocking all the cells that you want your users to be able to change, click on the **Protect Sheet** button on the **Review** tab.

Data Review View BizInsig	ht
nous Next Show/Hide Comments	Protect Share Workbook * Workbook * Workbook * Track Changes *
Comments	Changes

1	В	C	D	E	F	G	-
	Company Year Department	BNE 2010 000					
	Segment1Code	SegmentDesc	1	2	3		t
	1100	Cash-Checking	1824	1872	-13333.6		
	1110	Money Market (Short-Term)	0	0	0		

5. In the Protect Sheet dialog, uncheck the **Select locked cells** checkbox and enter a password to prevent users from being able to unprotect the report. Click **OK**.



Users will not be able to select any cells except those that have been unlocked. This report can now be distributed to other BizInsight users and they will only be able to refresh and change the year parameter for functions.

Dynamic Report Titles

A versatile way to accomplish a dynamic report title is to use the BizInsight SetBizProperty7 and GetBizProperty7 functions.

The following example illustrates how to create a dynamic report title such as "For the X Months Ended January 31, 2014" where the number of month's changes as does the date.

- 1. Open your existing Account Definitions workbook or if you do not already have one, create one. BizNet Software recommends keeping all Account Definitions in a single, separate workbook from your reports.
- 2. Create a property matrix like the following where the PropertyName will be the Period Number and the PropertyValue is the variable title you would like to use.

А	В	С	D	E	F
	Dynamic Repor	t Header Definitions			
	PropertyName	PropertyVersion	PropertyValue	SetBizProperty7	
	1	ReportHeader	For The One Month Ended	For The One Month Ended	
	2	ReportHeader	For The Two Months Ended	For The Two Months Ended	
	3	ReportHeader	For The Three Months Ended	For The Three Months Ended	
	4	ReportHeader	For The Four Months Ended	For The Four Months Ended	
	5	ReportHeader	For The Five Months Ended	For The Five Months Ended	
	6	ReportHeader	For The Six Months Ended	For The Six Months Ended	
	7	ReportHeader	For The Seven Months Ended	For The Seven Months Ended	
	8	ReportHeader	For The Eight Months Ended	For The Eight Months Ended	
	9	ReportHeader	For The Nine Months Ended	For The Nine Months Ended	
	10	ReportHeader	For The Ten Months Ended	For The Ten Months Ended	
	11	ReportHeader	For The Eleven Months Ended	For The Eleven Months Ended	
	12	ReportHeader	For The Twelve Months Ended	For The Twelve Months Ended	

- **Dynamic Report Header Definitions** SetBizProperty7 PropertyName PropertyVersion PropertyValue =SetBizProperty7(\$B5,\$C5,\$D5) ReportHeader For The One Month Ended 1 ReportHeader For The Two Months Ended 2 For The Two Months Foded ? ReportHeader Function Arguments 3 For The Three Mon 4 ReportHeader For The Four Month SetBizProperty7 5 ReportHeader For The Five Month **i** = 1 PropertyName \$B5 6 ReportHeader For The Six Months PropertyVersion \$C5 🎫 = "ReportHeader" 7 ReportHeader For The Seven Mor Property/Value \$D5 📧 😑 "For The One Month Ended" 8 ReportHeader For The Eight Mont - 9 ReportHeader For The Nine Mont No help available. ReportHeader For The Ten Month 10 11 ReportHeader For The Eleven Mor PropertyName 12 ReportHeader For The Twelve Mo Formula result = οк Cancel Help on this function
- 3. Add a SetBizProp function and pass in the parameters.

4. Copy your SetBizProp formula down for each period. Save your Account Definition workbook.

A	В	С	D	E	F
	Dynamic Report	t Header Definitions			
	PropertyName	PropertyVersion	PropertyValue	SetBizProp	
	1	ReportHeader	For The One Month Ended	For The One Month Ended	
	2	ReportHeader	For The Two Months Ended	For The Two Months Ended	
	3	ReportHeader	For The Three Months Ended	For The Three Months Ended	
	4	ReportHeader	For The Four Months Ended	For The Four Months Ended	
	5	ReportHeader	For The Five Months Ended	For The Five Months Ended	
	6	ReportHeader	For The Six Months Ended	For The Six Months Ended	
	7	ReportHeader	For The Seven Months Ended	For The Seven Months Ended	
	8	ReportHeader	For The Eight Months Ended	For The Eight Months Ended	
	9	ReportHeader	For The Nine Months Ended	For The Nine Months Ended	
	10	ReportHeader	For The Ten Months Ended	For The Ten Months Ended	
	11	ReportHeader	For The Eleven Months Ended	For The Eleven Months Ended	
	12	ReportHeader	For The Twelve Months Ended	For The Twelve Months Ended	
					 +

5. Open your report. Make sure your report has a cell with the Year and Period that can be referenced by the dynamic header function. TIP: Assign Excel range names to these cells for easier referencing.

	А	В		С	D	E
1	BNE	BizNet Enterprises				
2	2013	Т	rial B	alance		
3	4					
4		17 ·				
5				MTD		YTD
7	1100	Cash-Checking	\$	(13,468.30)	\$	357,477.24
8	1110	Money Market (Short-Term)		-		129,423.00
9	1200	Accounts Receivable		7,829.03		237,469.77
10	1205	Allowance for Bad Debt		(117.42)		(3,562.66)
11	1309	Due from BNC		783.66		10,138.91
12	1310	Inventory		84,331.57		1,645,610.34

Type the following function into the cell in which you want your dynamic report header.

```
=CONCATENATE(GetBizProp(RPT_PERIOD),"
```

```
",TEXT(DATE(RPT_YEAR,RPT_PERIOD+1,0),"MMMM DD, YYYY"))
```



Appendix

BizInsight Query Settings Button

The Application Settings dialog can be accessed by clicking on the gear icon in the BizInsight Query dialog.

BizInsight Query		- ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	What action would you like to take?
Table	Excel	Sum ~
f_{x} Function	Which data set?	What information would you like returned
m Data W issued		

This dialog allows you to adjust some default settings.

Your Preferred Results:	⊙ SuperFunctio	in OTabli	e	
Data Synchronization				
Automatic (Synchronize	e data on startup	and during t	the session)	
🔿 Session Only (When da	ata changes in the	workbook)		
O Startup Only (When op	ening the Excel V	(orkbook)		
O Manual (Disabled)				
🗌 Refresh Desktop Cache	es Twice (Nested)			Sync Now
Drag-and-drop Query Styl	e: 💿 Basic	() Advar	iced	
Drag-and-drop Query Styl	e: ⊙Basic	O Advar ument Lin	king	
Drag-and-drop Query Styl Choose your pr	e: ⊙Basic □ Enable Doc ovider: ○Paş	O Advar ument Lin perSave	king O DocLink	
Drag-and-drop Query Styl Choose your pr Company Name	e: ⊙ Basic □ Enable Doc ovider: ○ Paş	O Advar ument Lin perSave	nced king O DocLink	
Drag-and-drop Query Styl Choose your pr Company Name URL	e:	O Advar ument Lin perSave	nced king O DocLink	
Drag-and-drop Query Styl Choose your pr Company Name URL	e: ③ Basic □ Enable Doc ovider: ○ Paş	O Advar ument Lin perSave	nced king O DocLink	

The **Your Preferred Results** section allows you to specify whether you want the BizInsight Query dialog to default to **Function** or **Table**.

BizInsight Query		~ ×
What would you like to create?	Where is your data? Excel * Which data set?	What action would you like to take?
🚃 Data Validation		Reverse sign
Σ Expression		

This default selection will be used when using the **Start Over** button.

BizInsight Query			- ×		
What would you like to create?	Where is your data?	What action would you like to take?			
Table	Excel *	Sum ~			
f_{x} Function	Which data set?	What information would you like returned			
Data Validation		Reverse sign			
∑ Expression					
Add Filter Copy Filter Delete Filter Reset Filters					
Save		OK Cancel Start Over			

The **Desktop Data Sync** section pertains to BizInsight Tables that use Excel data sets (as opposed to data retrieved by a Connector) that reside in a workbook. These settings do NOT run "Refresh Workbook" or "Calculate Formulas".

Automatic – BizInsight Excel workbooks contain stored data ("Excel data"). When a
BizInsight workbook is opened in Excel, BizInsight checks if the caches are present in
memory and loads them if they are not. During report design, if a table is modified, the
associated cached table will be automatically synced. (e.g., if I add a new row to a table,
that data will be updated in the cache table). The downside to using this setting is the
cached tables are syncing at startup and every time you make a table change in the
workbook, which impacts performance.

🖊 Note

Any Functions referencing the stored data will not update. Users will need to select "Refresh Workbooks" to return the new values.

- 2. Session Only When a BizInsight workbook is launched in Excel, BizInsight does not check if the table data is cached in memory. During report design, if a table is modified, the associated cached table will be automatically synced. (e.g., if I add a new row to a table, that data will be updated in the cache table). The downside to using this setting is the cached tables are syncing every time you make a table change in the workbook.
- 3. **Startup Only** –When a BizInsight workbook is launched in Excel, BizInsight checks if the table data is already cached in memory and if not found, recreates the in memory cached copy of the table. This purpose of this setting is to keep the cached data tables from resyncing each time the BizInsight tables change resulting in performance issues.
- 4. Manual (Disabled) When a BizInsight workbook is launched in Excel, BizInsight does not check if the data is already cached in memory. During report design, if a table is modified, the associated cached table is not updated. You will need to manually click "Refresh Workbook" to sync the tables with the in memory cached tables.
- 5. Refresh Desktop Caches Twice (Nested) This feature is designed for the BizInsight 7 trial version. Users may create a table with Superfunctions. When Superfunc tables are committed into Excel cache, the Superfunctions contained in the tables need to be refreshed twice in order to properly display the aggregated result.
- 6. **Sync Now** This feature is for BizInsight 7 trial version. The "Refresh Workbook" button refreshes, recalculates, and syncs all Excel caches in the workbook. Clicking the Sync Now button shortens the process by syncing only the Excel caches without refresh and recalculation. Users can specifically target and modify a table or function without having to update the entire workbook.
- PaperSave and DocLink This integration allows you to establish a link between BizInsight and your document management system. Users simply supply the URL link in fx Query Data > Application Settings.

Table Parameters

The Table Parameters dialog is accessible from the right-click menu when a user right-clicks on a BizInsight Table object:

					_				
Ac	count	AccountD	AccountG	LO Retre	sn		Company	Companyl	CreditAm
13	0910000	Due from	1	, Bizln:	sight Table ()ptions 🕨	Refres	h Table	0
18	0900000	Investmer	1	Assets	340	357854	Table	Parameters	N 0
50	5000000	Officers C	5	Expenses	30	0	Edit O		vil00282
55	0000000	Income Ta	5	Expenses	39	0	Luit Q	nerà Bieraes erul	101000
56	5000000	Interest F	5	Fxnenses	40	Π	BNE	BizNet Ent	-48497.5

BizInsight Parameters		- ×
Parameters DataSourceID TableName Expression Columns RemoveDups	How parameter value is obtained Use the following value BizNet GL Get the value from the following cell	
	ОК	Cancel

Parameters	Parameter Options			
DataSourceID	This parameter's option allows the user to change the data source for the BizInsight table. The parameter can be changed to get its value from a cell which allows for dynamic updates. This parameter property will not commonly need to be changed.			
TableName	This parameter's option allows the user to change the table name from which values are being retrieved as well as change the parameter to get its value from a cell. These parameter properties will not commonly need to be changed.			
Expression	This parameter allows the user to change or modify the filters for the table or change the table to get its filter values from a cell. The pipe character " " is used to separate filter values. Of the parameter properties, this one is likely to be used. BizInsight Parameters Parameters How parameter value is obtained DataSourceID TableName Expression Columns RemoveDups OK Cancel			
Columns	During table creation, the user has the option to select which columns to display. After the table is created, this parameter can be adjusted to add or remove columns without having to recreate the table. Use the grid button, to the right of the Use the following value field, to reopen the Column Select list.			
RemoveDups	If the table needs to be changed to allow or remove duplicate records, that option can be changed in this parameter.			
Get External Data

BizInsight Query can be used to create Tables or Functions from your ERP system but can also be used against any Excel range containing the desired data. The first thing to do is to get your data into Excel memory.

The most robust method to get your data into Excel is via the **Get External Data** options in Excel because these connections can be refreshed to bring in updated information. You can find the **Get External Data** group on the **Data** tab in Excel.



The From Other Sources option includes:



Below is a link to an Excel article that explains how to utilize Excel's Get External Data:

https://support.office.com/en-in/article/Connect-external-data-to-your-workbook-945f2cbb-d50b-4ee2-bae8-c4c9381000c6

Adjusting Data Cache Management

BizInsight provides more granular control of data caches. You can manage what data to cache and what data not to cache. In the details of the data cache, you can change the "Check for new Data" from YES to NO. This will notify the service to skip the refresh command for the specific data cache.

GL Balances for Years 2012 and 2013 are not going to change so they are good candidates for changing the **Check for new Data** option to **NO**.

GL Transaction Detail (1) *								
GL E	Balances Yea	r to Date (2)				*		
	Name	GL Balances Year to Date		CompanyCode='BNE' FiscalYear='2013' FiscalPeriod='1'	Check for new Data:	No		
	Rows	141	Filter(s)					
	Cache Type	Serial						
	Created	6/7/2016 3:10:09 PM						
	Created For	Default_BizNet GL						
				I				
	Name	GL Balances Year to Date			Check for new Data:	No		
	Rows	141	Filter(s)					
	Cache Type	Serial		CompanyCode='BNE' FiscalYear='2012' FiscalPeriod='1'				
	Created	6/7/2016 3:10:09 PM						
	Created For	Default_BizNet GL						

Refresh Interval

The Refresh Interval specifies the minimum amount of time data caches can be re-used. The default refresh interval is 30 minutes but can be increased to a maximum of 24 hours.

The Refresh Interval can be accessed from two places:

A. View Data by clicking on the Change refresh interval link.



BizInsight7 ć Q E S HOME BizInsight7 SETTINGS Customize Startup Page Show/Hide sections in your Navigation pane Connect to Data B Set your connection type and info ation Preferences ig: Display, notification and data preferences

By clicking on the Settings button on the Navigation Pane and then choosing Preferences.

You can also specify how often you want data to be cached by setting the Data cache interval. This can be accessed via the View Data button on the BizInisght ribbon through the Navigation Pane Settings > Preferences.

Data Cache Refresh									
Data older than	30 min(s)	needs to be refreshed							
1									

Changing User Credentials

BizInsight uses your ERP login and password to connect to your ERP system and retrieve the data you request for your report. When your ERP system password changes, you must change that password for BizInsight. Following are the steps to change your password:

1. In Excel, click on **Configuration** > **Wizard** from the BizInsight tab.



2. Click Next.



3. Click the drop down and select the ERP system for which you need to change the password.



4. In the dialog that opens, type in your new password and then confirm it.

Intacct Settings	×
Your Profile will be stored as	Default ~ _Intacct
What Company ID to use?	biznet-DEV
Intacct Login Name	mmonroe
Password	******
Confirm Password	******
Add Another	OK Cancel



IMPORTANT

Make sure the asterisks for the Confirm Password field are **green**. If they are red, the passwords do not match each other.

- 5. Click **OK** once the passwords are re-entered.
- 6. Click Test Connection on the next dialog.

BizCloud Accelerator Configuration Wizard	\times					
BizCloud has started. Press 'OK' to continue.						
Test Connection						
Start Over OK						

7. If the test connection succeeds, the following dialog will display.



If the test connection fails, use the **Start Over** button to go back and re-enter your credentials.